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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Honorable lvlayor and l\,'!ember of the
Municipal Legislature
San Sebaslien, Puerto Rico

wehaveauditedtheaccompanyingfinancialstatementsollhegovernmenlalactivities,lhebusiness.type
activities, each major fund', and the aggregate remaining iund in{ormation of Municipality of San

Sebastian, puerto Flico, as ol and for the iear ended June 30, 2013, and the relaled notes to the financial

statemenl;, which collectively comprise the Municipality's basic financial statements as listed in lhe table

of contenls,

Il/lanagement's Responsibility tor the Financial Slalements

Management is responsible lor the preparalion and fair presentation oJ these linancial statements in

accor;ance wilh accounting p nciPles generally accepled in the United States ol America; lhis includes

the design, implementatioi, 
'and 

mainienance ol internal conlrol relevant to the preparation and lair
presentaiion oi financial statemenls that are free from mate6ai misslatement, whether due to traud or

e(ot.

Auditor's Responsibilily

our responsibility is lo express opinions on lhese financial statements based on our audit. we conducted

ou. 
"rdit 

in acc;rdance w1h aud1ing standards generally accePted in the United States of America'

Those standards require that we plan and pedom the audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboul

whetherthe Iinancial stalements are iree from material misstatement.

An audil involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in

the linancial statements. T-he procedures selected depend on the auditor's ludgment, including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement ol the financial statements, whelher due lo fraud or

error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevanl to the entity's
preparalion andfair presentation of the financjal statements in order to design audil procedures lhat are

appropriate in the circumstances, but nol lor the pumose of expressing an opinion on the et'ecliveness o'

the entily,s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion- An audit also includes evaluating

the app;opriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol signilicanl accounting

estimaies'madebymanagement,aswellasevaluatingtheoverallpresentationolihelinancial

we believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and aPpropriate to provide a basis lor
our audit opinions.

Opinions

ln our opinion, the linancial statements refered to above presenl fairly' in all material respects' lhe

respective financial posilion of the governmental activilies, the business-type aclivities, each major fund,

and the aggregate remaining lund inlormation of the Municipality of San Sebastien , Puerto Rico , as ol

June 30, io"13iand the resp;ctive changes in rinancial position and, where applicable, cash 
'lows 

thereol

lor the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in lhe lJnited states

of America.



Efiphasis-of'Maner

Newly Adopted Standards

As discussed in Note 22 to the financial statements, the MuniciPality adopted new accounting guidance'

C"r"i"r"""r"l Acc;unling Standards Board (GASB) Stalement No 62, Cod''':calion of Accounting and

iiiiniiui Cipo,ting auid;nce contained in Prc-November 30, 1989 FA9B and AICPA Pronouncements'

Sr"t"ment f(o 6i, Financial Repotling of Deterrcd Outflows of Resources, Delerrcd lnllows of
-iiiiii". ina iet Position, GASB Statemenl No. 65, /tems Previously Repofted as Assets and

t-r:atiAiies ettecrive .luty 1, 2012, and Stalemenl No 66' Technical Corrections-2ol2-an amendment of

GASB Statements No- 10 and No 62. Out opinion is not modified with respect lo this maiter'

Oiher llJlatters

Required Supplementary lnlormation

Accounting p nciples generally accepled in the United States of America require that the managemenl's

aiscussion" ina inatyiis and-tudgetary inlomation on pages 3 through.l3 and 58 through 59 be

oresented to supplement lhe basic ilnanaial statements. Such information, although nol a part of the basic

in"n"i"i"r.t"."nra, is requrred by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it lo

te an 
"ssenti.f 

pai ol financial ieporting lor placing the basic financial statements in an appropriale

"p"ruti"""f, 
economic, or hislorical conleit. We have apPlied certain limited procedures to the required

suoolementatu informaton in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in lhe united stales

oiim"ri"., *'t i"r, 
"onsrsled 

ol inquiries ol management about the methods of preparing the information

and comparing the inlomation foi consistency wlth management's responses.to our inqukies' the basic

financid ;tate;ents, and other knowledge we oblained during our audit of lhe basic financial statements.

w" a" not express an opinion or pr;vide any assurance on the information because lhe limited

procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance'

Other Reporting Requi edby Govemment Auditing Standards

lnaccordancewithGovemmentAuditingsta,dards,wehavealsoissuedoulreportdatedDecember20,
2013, on our consideration o, the Municipality ol San sebasten. Puerto Frco's internal control ovel

linancial reporting and on our tests ol its comphance with cerlain provisions ol laws, regulations,

lontru"i", ii,o g;t 
"greements 

and other matters. The purPose ol that report is to descibe the scope o'

our testing of iiternat-control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of lhat lesting, and

not io pro"ria" an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. Thal report is an

inieqiai p.rl ol an audit perlormed in accordance with covemment Auditing standads in consideing

[,4unicipality ot San Sebasiiiin, Puerlo Rico's internalcontrol overfinancial reporting and compliance'

7; t/,
ROTVAN TORO & CO., CPA, C.S.P.

LICENSE S 35. IN FORCE

Yauco, Puerto Rico

December 20, 2013

Stamp #E93362 was affixed to
the original report

ROMAN TORO & CO-, CSP Centrt.d Publi. Accountants u.! Busi'e$ Consuh@ts

PO BOX 3Ul YAUCO PR @698 3041 - TEL. (787) 856 62m FAX: (787)E56'623'l



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2013

The management ol Municipality of San Sebastian, Puerlo Rico (ilunicipality) ofiels this natrative overview and analysis of

thqlinanc;t activities ol lhe Munjcipatity lor the liscal year ended June 30, 2013. The l\,lanagemenl's Discussion and Analysis

(yD&A) is designed to locus on tire iurrent year activities, resulting changes and currently known,acts, and much ol ihe

i,.io,maiion i. c;mpa6ble to p or year. This MDM should be read in coniunction wilh the accompanying basic linancial

stalements and the acsompanying notes lo lhose linancial slatemenls.

This lllD&A is prepared in oder to comply wilh the reporting model required by Govemmental Accounting Standards Board

Statemenl No. i4 and, among other puposes, to provide the linancial statements users with lhe lollowing major infomation:

. a broader basis in tocusing important issues:

. acknowledgement olan oveNiew olthe l\4unicipalilys financial activities;

. provide forin evaluation of its linancial condilion as ofthe end olthe indicated fiscalyear, compaled with pdoryeal results;

. identilicalion ol uses ollunds in the linancing ol ihe Municipality's valiety o{ activities and;

. assess management's abilityto handle budgetary funclions

GOVERNIiIENTAL ACTIVITIES - FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The following are key financial highlighls lorlhe liscalyear:

. The Municipalily's assels exceeded its liabilities at June 30,2013 by $53'226,312, and at June 30,2012 by $49,319,542, as

reslaledl
. The Municipality's tolalnet position increase by $3,906,20 du ng fiscal yeat 2012'2013;
. As ol June 30;2013, lhe Municipality's govemmental lunds reported combined ending lund balance o{ $12,499,890, a

decrease of$1,362,471 from the plior year;

. Al June 30, 2013, the Statemenl ol Net Position presented an unresticted delicil ol $1'053,792;

. The Municipality's capital assets inventory increase as a lesult ol this yea/s operalions. Capilal assels as ol June 30, 2013

were $64,668,777 (net ol accumulated deprecialion);
. The investmenl in capitalassels forlhis yeal was $48,852,038 (nel ol related debt);

. Loans pdncipal payments were $1,545,000 and $2,115,000 in 2013 and 2012, respeclively.

BUSINESS.TYPE ACTIVITIES +INANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

. The tolat net posilion olthe proprietary fund amounled lo $1,095,790, olwhich $627,792 are invested in capitalassets, net

ol retated debl, $385,005 are reslricted forthe operations oi lederally funded programs and $82,993 are unrestricted;

. The total net position ol lhe proprietary lund incleased by $22,825 during the liscalyear ended on June 30, 2013.

OVEBVIEW OF THE BASIC FINAI{CIAL STATEMET'ITS

This discussion and analysis is inlended lo serue as an inlroduction to lhe Municipality's linancial slatements The Municipality's

basic ,inancial slatemenis compdse three componenls: govemment-wide financial statemenls; lund linancial statements; and

notes to the tinancial stalemenis. This repod also contains other supplementary inlomation in addition lo lhe basic financial

slalemenls lhemselves.

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Certifie.l Public Accounta ts and Bushess Consuhants

Po BoX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3043 ' TEL- (787) 856 6220 FAx: (787) 8s6'6233



COMIi,IONWEALTH OF PUERTo RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENOED JUNE 30, 2013

GOVERNMENT-WDE FINANCIAL STATEME}ITS

The government-wide linancial statements are composed ol: (1) lhe stalemenl of net posilion and (2) the slalemenl ol activities.

The; iinancial slatements can be found immedialely following this [,lD&A. These linancial statements are designed to provide

readers with a broad overview ollhe lltunicipality's linances, in a mannersimilarto a private-seclor business.

STATE I,IENT OF NET POSITION

The purpose ol the statement ol net position is lo attempl lo repod all assets owned and all liabilities owed by the

[4uni;ip;lily. The ltlunicipality reports ol all o{ its assets when il acquires ownership over lhe assets and reports all ol its

liabililies w'hen lhey are i;curcd For example, the ['tunicipality leporls buildings and inlrastruclure as assels, even though

they are not available to pay the obligalions incurred by the l,tunicipality. On lhe olher hand, the lvlunicipality reports liabiliiies,

suci as claims and judgments, bonds and notes payable, obligations under capital leases, compensaied absences and

cedain accounts payable and accrued liabilities, even though these liabilities might nol be paid unlil several liscal years inlo

the luture.

The difterence between the l!,luflicipality's lotal assets and tolal liabililies reported in the statement ol nel posilion is presenled

as net posilion, which is similar to the lolal owners' equity reported by a commercial enlerp se in its linancial statemenls.

Ahhough the pupose ol the Municipalily is not to accumulate net posilion, as lhis amounl increases or decreases ovel time,

such imount represenis a useful indicalor o, whelher the linancial posiiion o, lhe Municipality is eithel improving or

deterioraling, respectively.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

The statement of activities presents inlormalion showing how the l\,'lunicipalily's nel position changed during the fiscal year

ended June 30, 201 3, by presenling all of the Municipalily's revenues and expenses. As previously discussed, the items

reported in lhe statemeni ol aclivities are measured in a manner similar lo the approach used by a commercial entepise in

that tevenues are recognized when earned or esiablished criteria are salislied, and expenses are recorded when incurred by

the [4unicipalily. Consequenlly, revenues are repoded even when they may nol be collecled lol several monlhs alter the end

ol theliscalyear and expenses are recorded even thoughlhey may not have used cash during the currenl year.

Although the slatemenl ol activities looks diflerenl irom a commercial enteQlise's income statement, lhe ditlerence is only in

lomainot substance. Whereas the botlom line in a commercial enlerprise represenls ils nel income, the l\,lunicipality reporls

an amount described as netchange in net posilion, which is essenlially the same concept.

The focus ol the stalemenl o, aclivilies is on the nel cost ol va ous activities provided by the lrunicipality. The slatement

begins wilh a column that identilies the cosi of each ol the Municipality's majol functions. Another column idenlifies lhe

tev;nues lhat are specilically relaled lo the classilied governmenlal funclions. The diflerence between lhe expenses and

revenues related to specilic lunctions/programs identilies lhe extent to which each function of the Municipality draws from

general revenues or is self-linancing lhrough rees, intergovemmenlal aid, and olher sources o, resources.

This slatemenl also presents a compaison between direct expenses and program revenues lor each lunclion ol lhe

[,,lunicipality.

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Certifi?tl Public Acco ntants ond Business Cottsultants

PO Box 3043 YAUCO PR 00698-3/i'/3 TEL (787) 856'6220 FAx: (787) 856 6233



COMiiiONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAB EI,IDED JUNE 30, 2013

GOVEBNMENT-wlDE FINANCIAL STATEMET'ITS (COt{Tlt'luED}

Both ol ihe govemmenl-wide linancial statemenls of lhe l!,4unicipality are principally supported by taxes and intergovemmenlal

Lvenues. Tie Municipality's activities include; generat governmenl, public salety, public wo*s, culture, recrealion, health and

welare, anO inter"Ss. pioperty taxes, volumiol business taxes, sales ta.{es, and slale and ledenl grants finance most of

lhese activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Municipality's fund linancial statements consist ol: (1) the balance sheel - govemmenlal funds, (2) the slatement ol

,ar"nrar, ,rpanditr,es 
"nd 

changes in lund balances - govemmental funds, (3) the slatemenl of net position - proprieiary

lund, (4) lhe stalement ol revenues, expenses and net change - proprietary lund, and- (5) the slatemenl ol cash llows -
oroD ;taru lund. These linancial stalemenls report the linancial position, the resulls ol opeEiions and cash llows of the

i,lrnicipatity,. gouernr"nlat and proprietary tunds, wilh an emphasis on the [,lunicipality's maior govemmental and proprietary

lunds.

A lund is a grouping oj relaled accounts that is used lo maintain conlrol over [esources that have been seglegated for specilic

activities o;obj;di;es. The Municipality, like most other state and local governmenls, uses lund accouniing io ensure and

Oeronstrae clmptiance with linancejrelated legal requiremenls. Each lund js considered an independent liscal enlity

accounted lor within a sel of sellbalancing accounG thal compdse ils assets, liabililies, lund equily, revenue, and expenditures.

iuna accounting segregates lunds accirding to their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonsl6ling

compliance with legal. financial and conlractual prov6ions.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

The Municipality's basic services are reported in the govemment fund linancial slatements. The govemment funds are

repoded using ;n accouniing melhod called modified accrual accounling, which measules cash and all olher financial assets

lhat can readiiy be convene; into cash. Governmental lunds are used to account lor essentially the same funclions reported

as governmenial activities in the government-wide financial slatemenls. However, unlike the government'wide linancial

dat;menls, govemmenlal fund lina;cial stalemenls focus on near{erm inllows and outllows ol spendable resources, as well

as on bala;c; ol spendable resources availabb al lhe end ol the liscalyear. Such inlornalion may be uselul in evalualing a

govemmenl's near-term financing requiremenls. Because the locus ol govemmental funds is narrower lhan thal of ihe

ioremment-ride financi"l slatem;nb, it is uselul to compare the inlomation presented lor govemmental funds with similar

iilomation presented lor govemmenlal aclivities in the govemment-wide linancial slatements. By doing so, reade6 may

better understandlhe longtem impact ollhe govemment's nearierm linancing decisions

The Municipality adopls an annual appropriated budget tor ils general fund. A budgelary comparison stalemenl has been

provided forthe generallund to demonstate compliance with this budget.

PROPRIETARY FUND

The propdelary lund is a lund used to report the linancial posilion, results of operalion and cash llows ol Villa Soigal (Project

tto. osas'OOS7O5492,ot-3), is a housing development consisting of 120 dwelling unils localed in San Sebastian

ROMAN TORO & CO , CsP Ce ilied Public Accoutta ts and Business Consuhants

PO BOX 3043 vAUCo PR 00698'3043 ' TEL. (787) 856'6220 FAx: (787) 856 6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

PROPRIETARY FUND (CONTINUED}

TheproiectisownedbytheMunicipality,bulilsoperalionsarecaniedoulbyaprivatemanagementagentunrelatedlothe
r.irni'.ip|itv rhr tr"*ing developmeni proiect of Villa Soigal has been designed to assist various segments ol the general

oubtic in obtaininq adeouite and reasonable priced rentd h;using. The proiecl operates under linancing through the Seclion

I H"* Conrir.r[n 
"ni 

substantial Rehabiliiation Program of lh; U.s Department ol Housing and Uban Development and

the Seclion 515 Rural RentalHousing Loans Prcgram ollhe U.S Department of Ag cullure The puryose o' Villa Soigal is lo

provide adequate housing to low-income tesidenls ollhe Municipality

The activities ol villa soigal have been repoded as a proprielary lund in the accompanying basic linancial statements since

duip"-ir, rn, *" oi enleprise lund; to report any activity for which a fee is charged lo exlernal users of goods or

services, regardless of whelher ihe govemment tends l; fuly recover the cosl ol lhe goods or services provided Thus, it is

aoa.on toi,r" prop,i"r"ry lund rep-orting to account lor services where the govemmenl intends lo recover only a podion of

its costs through fees oI usercharges.

Proprietarylunds providethe same type of inlormation aslhe GWFS, but in more detail

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIIENTS

The notes provide additional informalion thai is essenlial lo a lull undeElanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide

and lund linancial statemenls.

OTHER INFORIiIATION

ln addition lo lhe basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presenls certain lequired supplementary

inlomalion conlaining budget lo aclual compalisons lorlhe generaland majorlunds

ROMANTORO & CO., CSP Cenified Public Accountattts and Btsiness Consuhants

Po Box 3013 YAUCO PR 00698-3U3 ' TEL. (787) 8s6'6220 FAX: (787) 8s6'6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

ti,tANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C0NTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

GOVERNMENT-WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

GOVERNIiIENTAL NET POSITION

Asnotedeaier,nelposilionmayserveovertimeasausefulindicalorotagovemmenl,slinancialposition'lnlhecaseolthe
tufuni"ipifity, gorrrnltnt l activities assets exceeded liabililies by $53,226,3i2 as ot June 3q-2013' veEus $49'319'542 as of

Lrne Jo, lofYz, as restaled. Business-type activities assets exceeded liabilities by $1'095'790 as of June 30' 2013' vercus

l;,ili'6il;iJr;3a, i012. our analvsis betow locuses on the net posilion (Table 1) and changes in nel position of the

lllunicipality's governmental activities and business-type aciivilies

BNiness.lyp. Activiiie.

sli.mHt ol iLl Pollior

curdn md nm{ur6nl assels

Curenl liabilides

TohlLitbilides

DeEr.d hnol,! ol l€ onrcas

lnv€stnenl ir caPihl ass€ls, nel

90,000,000

80,000,000

70,000,000

60,000,000

50,000,000

40,000,000

30,000,000

20,000,000

10,000,000

0

$ 18,355,859

64,668,711

s3,r,,,36

5,114,216

24,531,245

29545,t21

M
hs r.at bd)

$ 20 949,346

57 6,13,537

78597,883

6,397,831

22:710,465

29,1$,46

$ 539,80s
1,378,932

1,918,737

184,716

w947

$ 711,702
1,267,874

1.970J76

134581

7n,030

906,6ll

$18,895,664
66,047,709

j48!n4-

s,298892
25,169,476

!0,160,466

152,m3

2012

{a! Bt3bd)

$ 21,661,043

58,916I11

805r,159

6,532,412
23,4€2t95

30,014,907

tm,o45

2012 2013

152,81'3 1?0,045

4€,852,038 40,701,537

5,428,066 11,565,837

621,792
385,005

368,486
538,376
166,103(1,053,792) 12.947,&321

! r32r6.3u ....!.lry ! 1!g:I- !,!!4SL

49,479,8m 41 ,070,023
5813,071 12,10!,,213

ra70 79sl 12-751 1i4)

3 5rl.322.lll2 I 50,302J0,

r2013

a2012

Toial Liabilities Deierred lnllows

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenified Public Accountants an'l Businets Consultants

PO BoX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698'3M3 ' TEL. (787) 856'6220 FAX: (787) 856-6233
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CoMIiIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

ti,tANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (C0NTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

GOVERNMENT-WDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

Thc larflesl Dortion ol lhe ltrtunicioalitv's net posdion reflects its investment in capital assels (e g land' buildings' machinery and

fi ffiij t$il ;;.il iri,i ,l"o i" ""rqrir. r,rse assets stitl oulstandins. These capilal assets ale used to provide

,Jri."i to'.iti.rn"; i,ont"quenlly these assets are nol available lol lulure spending ll should also be noled that the resources

,"^,,ir"i i" L*, m" 
"faled 

debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assels lhemselves cannol be used to

fii"*rft il"]!il;iiil;;.-a" JJitiln.r p",r.io" 
"rte 

Municipatiry,s net position represents resources that are subiect lo exremal

restdclions on ho$/ they may be used.

GOVEBNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Govemmental activities increased lhe Municipalilys net posilion Key elemenls ot lhis increase are as tollows: the

Mrni.inatiMs oovemmenlal activities had net e;penles ol $i+.08+,att. However, lhese seryices are intended lo be pimarily

iffi;lfi;il;,;;;ilorJio .r,irg", ro, ."rices and granls. and those taxes and other generat revenues exceed nel

irp""r* ovsi,goo,zio rn addilion, bisiness-type activitiesincreased the Municipality's net position by $22'825'

Thecoslolallgovernmentalacliviliesandbusiness.typeaclivitieslhisyearwas$25,076,834and$610'348,rcspectively,Table
2 presenls the cost ol each ofthe l\''lunicipalily's lalgesl programs'

Bulineis.tYpe Aclivilies

Table 2
2012 2013 20132012

Granls od mnltibutio.s

lnterest and iN€stnent eamhgs

Public Housing aM Wefare
rnl€est m longtern dobls

Nel posiho - beghnnq asrcslihd

I m,066,070

743,n1

6,m7,154
1,840,m2
2,195,810

688,132
687,703
49t,523

32,861,831

8,613,046
s'10,695

8,575n5l
1,471,368

7,372,091

6951r/

27,868,931)

4,992,901
,14,326,M1

a 
'ts319542

$ 628 685 $ 6?2.224
$ 16,17,488

1,104,,159

5,6n,6n
1,7r6869
231A,677

123,43
476,897
196,i44

28,983,604

8,706,508
901,421

5,822.608
1,509573
7,125,4!8

1,011310

25,076,834

3,906,/i0
49,319,542

153J26312

2,883

1,605

633,173

3,215
1,550

627,U9

$ 17,406,173

1,104,,159

5,677 Sn
1,716869
2314,677

723,N3
479,7N
191:749

29.616,m

8,706,508
901,421

5,822,608
1,509573
7,125$8

558,319
1,063,339

25,6A1,182

3,S29595
50,392,507

3 54322,1@

$ 20,68S,300

743,231

6?07,154
1,U0,202
2,1S5,810

688,132

690,978
435,073

$,4r8,880

8,613,046
9,(),695

8,575,857
1J7r,368
7,312!JA7

505,r9
955,952

29,43418l

5,054,096
45,338,411

3 5032507

558,319
52!J8

610,348

aB25
1,072,965

41,@5J91'

s05,79
60,075

61,195
1311,r/0

31,072865

ROMAN TORO & CO , CSP Certifred Public Accountunts and Busine$ Consuhants

PO ROx 3013 YAUCO PR 00698'3u3 - TEL (787) 8s6'6220 FAX: (787) 856 6233



COiiIMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAF ENDED JUNE 30,2013

GOVEBNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

. Grants and contributions

r Charges ior sewices

v Propedy taxes

a Municipal licen6e tar

r Sales and use lax

c Olher locat la,xes

c inleresl aM inveslmenl eamings

s MisEellaneous

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenilied P blic Accountants and Business Consukants

Po Box 3043 YAUCO PR 006s8-3013 TEL. (787 ) 856-6220 FAx: (787) 8s6'6233

2013 Expenditures

r General govemmeni

r Public safety

s Public works

r Cullure and recrealion

r Health and weltarc

s Public Housing and Weltare

v Inlerest on long'tem debb

2013 Revenues



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAI'I SESASTIAN

MANAGEIi,tENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

GovERNMENT-WtDE FtNANCIAL ANALYSIS (C0NTltlUED)

Approximalely thirtyjive perceni (35%) ol lhe [runicipality's governmental activities and business-type aclivities lotal revenue

came lrom taxes, while fifty.nine percenl (59%) resulled hom grants and cont bulions. Federal grants represent thidy{hree

percent (33%) of the govemmental activities granls revenues. The [.lunicipalily's govemmental activities and business-type

activilies expenses included ilems such as general govemmenl, public safely, public wo*s, culture and recrealion, health and

welfare, public housing and wellare, and inleresl on long tem debts.

Approximalely thirtyJour percent (34%) of total expenses resuhed lrom geneal govemment, twenty-three percenl (23%) from

public wo*s, six percent (6%)lrom culture and recrealion and twenly-eight percenl (28%)from health and wellare.

GOVERNMENT FUND FINATICIAL ANALYSIS

As noted eadier, lhe Municipality uses lund accounting to ensure and demonsttate compliance wilh finance-Ielated legal

requiremenls.

EOb-!
B.hnc. Sh6et

LiaDil0€si

D€btrsd lnffo$ Fesdnces:

Cmbhed iobl lund bdaes

Totl LblliliE, &lemd inflon

$ 4,478,800 $ 5,916,048

1217,614 1,295,929

10,000,000

5.696414 7,2119'

5,000 000588890 519,109

152903 170 045

741,693 689154 0

25,m0.000 ]-

m,000,000

15,0@,m

Tola Tota! Delered
Assek Labililies nflorvs

?!12
2013 {.s Btrd)

$ 14,900,588 $ 17,37256
4,03i,,4!9 4,386236

i 18,9,7897 I 21,763/192

8,425,153 11,414 737

478,!24 508,647

3,596,713 r,923,97

12499,890 13,8M,361

.2013

j2012

Toral

! Q!!U!gL ! !1J!!,4q

The locus ol the lvluflicipality's govemmental lunds is to provide infomation on near-tem inllows, outllows, and balances of

spendable resources. Such inlomalion is useiul in assessing the Municipality's liflancing requirements. ln padicular, unreserved

lund balance may serve as a uselulmeasure ol a govemmenl's nel resources available lorspending al the end of ils liscalyear.

At June 30, 2013 the Municipalily's govemmenlal lunds leporled combined ending lund balances ol $12,499,890, a declease of

$1,362,471 flom the pfor year.

10
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COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEIiIENT,S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013

GOVEBNMENT FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (COI'ITINUED)

The Municipalily has an unassigned lund balance ol $3,596,713 in ils General Fund. The remaindel ol the balance is assigned

and reslficled t; indicate that iiis noi available for new spending because it has already been committed; (a) lo liquidate prior

year obligaiions ($359,850) and others ($118,174), (b) to pay debt service ($2,719,049) and (c) lor other restdcted puposes

($5,706,104).

40,0m,000 -_ -!!El
Clunoes in Fund Bab.B

IohlBvenues MatorFunds

Tohl rorenues - oh€l Funds

Cmbined lohl @nues

TobleeendihrBs Mal)l Funds

Tohlep.nditrres-OtE Funds

cmbined tolal e4trditu€s

oter finamns s4u@s (uses):

Oher inanchg sourc€s [46ior Funds

Oher fnanchg eurces - Ot'er Flnds

Combhed ofier rMcing soun€s

Nel danges h turn balance

2013

$ 24,231124

28,913,823

23,525,P8
11,361,066

34,886,294

4,610!D
l4pl

4,610,0m

(r,362'17 1)

13,862,361

112,4e,@O

a2

$ 26,219.s09
6,123213

32,U2,n2

24,665,881
8,535,855

33,201,736

35.000,000

30 000 000

25,000,000

20,000,000

r5,m0.000

10,0@,000

5 000.000

0

-5,000,000{859,014)

14,721,375

313,852361

Fmndng Flnaiqng saa@

PROPBIETARY FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

At June 30, 2013, the lotat assels ol proprietary lund amounled 10 $1,918,737, which consisted pincipally ot (1) cash and

invesimenls 01$513,088, and (2) capital asseb o, $1,378,932, net ol accumulated depreciation'

AlJune30,2013,lhelotalliabilitiesoltheproprielaryfundamounledlo$822,947'whichconsisiedof:(1)morlgagenoles
payable of $751,140, and (2)accounls payable and accrued liabilities ol $71,807

The total net position ol propietary lund amounted to $1,095,790 al June 30, 2013, ol which $627,792 are invesled in capital

assets, and $385,005 ale reserved for program aciivities
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COIIIMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

FOB THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2()I3

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Budoet and aclual comparison schedules are provided in the Basic Financial Slatemenls lor the Genelal Fund The Budgetary

ili',,ji"i. si-rrioi,i. iirte o"ne,a rrno.tows t'tre;dginal adopted budgets, lhe linal revised budget, aclual results' and

;;ffi;;*#ffi;;iorG."a "rir"i,.*n" 
tor thJ general and maior speciat revenue trinds. Table s summadzes the

resulls ollhe General Fund's Budgetary Comparison Schedule;

Table 5 Final

Actual
Amounls

Total rcvenues

Total expenditules, encumbances and

olher financing uses

Ercess oI deiciency

The original and the linal budgel of the Genelal Fund lor the fiscal year ended June 30' 2013 amounied to $'t4 275 193 and

iii,+o7,qa3l"rp.oir"tv. oier the course ot ihe tiscat year. the Municipatity revised the General Fund's budgel in older to

include increases and decreases in revenues that wer; identilied during lhe course ol lhe fiscal ye based on current

ijl,"if,,priii, ii.:t p".lt-"ly attected ttre l.tunicipJity,s tinances. The lawi and regulations of the Commonweallh mandale a

balanced budget.

The lotal aclual revenues {budgelary basis) of the general lund for the liscal.yeal ended June 30' 2013 were $14'911'952'

'irrir, li Jipiiii.iiriv tr; p"..i,r tsv"j, or $++'+,50g more than the budgeted revenues ln addilion' lhe total actual

"r"""liriJJ.ro "t.iri"ancing 
sources (budgetary basis) ollhe genelallund lor the tiscalyear ended June 30 2013 were

iiSliig,Hi ;i,i"t it 
"pproximirely 

six perceni16"oi. or $878 886 less than the budgeied expendilules'

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Municipalilys investmenl in capilal assels lor [s govemmenlal type aclwfies.as ol June 30 2013 amounled lo

#; dd;i(.;i ; ;;;muhted depreciation). This inve-slment in capiial assels includes land buildings improvements'

i,inii* 
""a'rirtui"r, 

*t icles and equipment,'anJ inkastructure. The total increase in the Municipality's invesiment in capilal

".$tt 
tilt 

" "r,".t 
rir*ry"r, *.t $2,79t,222. T"ble 6 present the major classes ol capilal assets

$ 14,467,443 $14,911,952 $ 444,509

14.467.443 13.588.557 878.886

$ 
- ---: l-]123195 $1J23,i195

Conslruction in progress

Land

Buildings and building implovements

Fumitule and fixlules

Vehicles and equipment

lnlrastructure

Total Assets

$ 3,127,4s0
6,071,776

40,770,354
579,655
934,610

13,184.952

$ 6rt60!J7Z

ROMAN TORO A CO. CSP Ce ified Public Atcoukta ts antl Business Canyltant!

PoBOX3u3 vAUCo PR 00698-1043 TEL. ( 787 ) 8s6-622A FAX: (787)856 6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

ti,lANAGElilENT'S DISCUSSION AND AI'IALYSIS (CONTINUE0)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30,20'I3

LOilG.TERI DEBT

Ai June 30,2013,1he l\,iunicipality had total ol $24,531,245 in general obligalions and oth€rc outslanding debts' as shown in

i;;;.;ift;firi $zo,zzz,ooo 
"omp,isei 

o"ui oi.r.o ty t. rrrrr"iin and credit ol rhe sovernment and $4,30e,245 is

olher obligalions.

General obligalions bonds and noles

Others

Total Long Term Debts

$20.222,000
4.309.245

s24831215

TheMunicipalityisrequiledlolimillheamountolgenelalobligationdebtto'10%ollhetolalassessmenlolpropertylocated
wirh,n rh. M,nii:inatilv in order lor the OonOs to oe rJpad with th; proceeds ol property laxes restricted lol debi services Other

:ilil^;";;,ff;:;;,;ilr""til. r.Jii.i r*re and advanies of property raxes. More detaired information about lhe

i':]i;Hiirl; #il;l.riri[li. p"r.r[J i. rne nores ro the financial italements. The Municipalitv conlinues io meei ils

financial needs thiough prudenl use ol ils levenues and crcative debt linancing proglams'

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAB'S BUDGETS AI'ID BATES

Local, national and internalional economic laclors influence the Municipality's revenues. Positive economic groMh is corelated

with increased revenues lro, prop"ny,ur"r, ,ol,a" ol business taxes, siles taxes' chalges lor seryices' as well as stale and

il;i;;;;i.. E.onffi gio*irr i'n ti ucar economy may be measured by a vadely ot indicators such as employment groMh,

unempdyment, new construclion, assessed valuation, and other revenues'

AllollheselactorswereconsideredinpreparinglheMunicipalitysbudgetlorth€2ol3fiscalyear,somecoslreductionshelped
iffi;;;;;,r;;t ;i;iisiing raclrirLs,' public safety and works, iconomic development iniliatives and human service

improvements.

BEOUESTS FOB INFORMATIO}.I

ThisfinancialleportisdesignedloprovideageneraloveryiewoltheMunicipality'slinanceslorallthosewiihanintereslinthe
oovemment s linances. eueslions concernrng any oi the infomalion provided in ihis report or requests lor additional inlormation

;onlacl the MuniciDalitvs Finance oepartmenl al (787)896'1550'

R1MAN TOR} & CO-, CSP Certified Public Accountonts and Business Conuhantt
po Box 3043 vAUCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856 6220 FAX: (787) 856-6233
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COI.IMONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

I.,IJNICIPALfi OF SAN SEBASTIAI'I

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE30,2O13

Business.lype
Acliviiies Toial

ASSETS:

Cash and inveslmenls

Cash wilh liscal agenl

Municipal license ta@s

Sales and use taxes

Renl, lic€nses and Pernih

lntelgovemmental

lnle resl, Iines and penallies

Fedealglants

OlheIs

Olh€r curent assels

Capihl assels:

Land, impovements, and conslruclion in pogless

Olhet capital ass€ts, nel ol depreaialion

Tolal capilal assels

Olher non{ufienl assels

TOTAL ASSETS

LnBIrflEs:

Accoofits payable and accru€d liabildres

Eonds and noles Payable

oue lo govemm€nlal unils

Municipal license laxes

Lmg-lem liabili[es:

Due vdlhin one Year

Due in flrorc lhan one YeaI

TOTAL LIABLMES

delrcd lnf,offi ol Rs6ource!

r{Er postTtol{

lnve$d in capitalasssls, nel ol related debt

Hestdcled lor:

Debt sorvice

Olher PUPoces

Unreslicl€d (deficil)

TOTAL I{ET POSITON

$ s,562,555

7,918,472

18,534

218,363

202,84

194,381

291,214

2%,431

163872

13,866

5,554

18.879,026

9,257,556

56.790,1s3

66,047,709

16,638

14.9t3373

9,049,467

7,978,472

18,534

218,363

202,6U

194,381

297,214

223,431

163,972

9,341

$ 513,088

9,139,206

55,459,571

64,668,7//

83,024.536

1,390,744

1,295,000

493,663

207,165

1,727;104

1,786,976

22,744,269

2S.515.521

152,m3

48,852,038

2,719,A45

2,709,017

(1,053,792)

I 53226.312

4,525

523167

58,350

1.320.582

1,378,932

16,638

1,918,7:17

71.807

112,909

638,231

824s47

621.792

385 005

82.993

1,462,551

1,295,000

4S3,663

m7,165

1J27J04

1,89S,885

23.382,s00

30.{68.{68

152,800

49,479,830

2,71S,01S

3,094,e2

1970.799)

3 3432^102$ 1,095,790

Ih€ notes lo the lina.chl 3tabMrs m an inl€ghl P.rl ol tnis statefi€nt

ROMAN TORO & CO' CSP Cenifretl Public Accou tants and Business ConsuLtants

Po BOX 3043 YALIC} PR 006s8'3043 ' TEL. (787) 856'6220 FAx: (787) 856'6233
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Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico

lilunicipality ol San S€bastien

Statement of Aclivilies

Forthe Year Ended June 30,2013

el (Bp€is) R4!l1ue d Chtnge in Nel Politon

opsrling Cqibl

G,rnls rnd GnnEtid

Conl budm! Codibrliois

Chilg!510,

8.706 508

901,127

5 82 008

1.509 t3

7125.4i8

1011,310

s l4 812

I 059 647

l&5m

6.090 2S

2143 496

(0.661 636)

(sl,427)

(2 ru,3s)

(rje 5a)

p 531

(r,or.3r0)

(8 66r.S6)

{s01,{24

(2,0s,339)

(r 509,5il)

32,534

(r,011310)

To{ govcnrc'tl.r1idtr.

.drtsh oll52,0a

Tobl burlo€+q?l ic[lili6

I 25,016,8{ I 1,101,{59 (11.fl4,r11) (14'01,810| 7744,(E8 i 2113,196

s 628 685 18 33i l8 337610t{!

! 610 1,8 t s 628.685 I t8 331

Glil a{.0iirhs d rsthtd n spscft l0rint
hBrslad itreshei €Eris

{elFGn -bqiriEas llsbtd

56n 6n

I716.909

2.310 6'
ue3

6 889.C1

4i6.897

t96 r11

2.883

r0s

5676'
r 716 969

2 310 67

i23 293

6 0t9 924

479 780

197.749

11991 581 4 488 17.996 069

,,906,7m

19.319512

s 53,26,312

&@5

I 0z 965

t,929,5!5

50 3S2.507

1,095 790 I t1,32,1@

The nobs b lE hanqal sbbm0b are an hlgGl pad olhb shbflEnl
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(]l,lfu*alrh .l Puerlo Rito
Mri.iElity ols S€rE6ds

GoErlftnl.l Funrk

-____EI$-

18,511

218,363

20L6e4

l94.t3l

1r7,2t4

22i.41\

t61,912

582,139

ASSEIS

Municbal license laEs

Renl, lic€.ses and Demis

Inteesr, fhes aod Penahies

$ 5.614,61 I.l13 s $

68.893

21,5{},1

-53,4342()a59,O49.4n
3,563.157 - 7918412

r8J34

l79,l80

194.38r

,343t

2tt1
582139

ll,6ll
8r)8

t49,470

b1.2t4

l5o.34l

( 6*l.l6t 1 rs557 tr 4J07Jl l-<61.157 tr 4'0J7'40o tr 18937oo8

LI{BILITE, DETIRRD IMTTOWS OT

REOURCES. AND IUND BALANCES

LIABILITTE
Accouns paylble.nd accrued li.bilities

Botrds and.oies payable

Du. to govemdntd unns

Municipal license rats

DEIERNED INFTI)WS OF RSOIJIICE

R.nt,ltenses and pemns

lmeesr, 6nes and penahies

Total Defered Intu s of Res ouFes

Toril fund bala.ces

Ier lidilirie. D.f.E€d ttIr4 oa

Rsmes. {rd ilmd B,lles

333,841

*.i*

fin:7@

15,55? S $

1,295,{m

{o5,87r $ 63s!15

,rr,,,,

$ r,390,?,r4

1,295,m

493,63

20_I,165

582,r39

405 r7l I 217.61'1 r,b\nl:

179,180

l89,9lr

2t9,',199

139,9

219,7q)

r52,803152,303

.""om - l{280:r 74l.tPl

a,45,153

478,02.1

3,596,713

359,850

2,7t9,U9 \tl,2A6 2,5.18,313

- 118174

lq<blrr }?la.(]dq 3lt.23b 2ft.@2 l2'!q)'&0

1 6tl4.l6j i ts557 T 4507.712 $ 156!.1s7 $ 4.037'40{ 1 t89.}7J08

Th. nor.s ro ihe lin.ncial sbiemmts aE an nn€ghl p6d ol lhis stttsnenl-
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common*alth of Pueno Bico

Municipality ol San Sebasliin

Staiemenl ol Revenues, Expendifurcs and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmenlal Funds

For ihe Ye Ended June

ohBr Tol.l

covmmnld Goremmnld

Funds Fund.

Fd'eral g.anb8nd@ ndons

lnBr€* hs ed PqE[6

lnbrcsland on€l cna.g€

Exa{detirE ) o,ddBd€r

orh* lhadng $urcer (us)

Tohl oh€. haflig sour6 (us)

Ndcnang€ h tnd bahnc4s

Fund bahn a (&1d0, beghnhg_* rcsbEd

Fu.d babn . (delo'o, endhg

4,239,238 $

1,716,96S

901.911

, s 1.567,401 $

- 816.952

$ 5,3m,639

1,716,969

2,510,6i

901,911

5,593,780

11,183,708

546,893

4tt,554424,873

\a$,;25

2,661,699

4.293,1-44

30,343

- 2,932,041

6,849,924

- 3,338

t96.trl4 _ 202,548 398,692

I711,233

83!,937

2,395,623

142,457

357.781

70€,133 2.932031

1,266.r07

17,24

3.567,3@

2,s27,,?A7

11,195

3,394,665

5,421,349

9,9r/,345

330,937

4,940,732

142,457

7,034,879

9,99.1,653

1,5,15,0001,5450m

1O ,31O - 1,011,310

rr136169 293203! r.5'6.3 0 4950.553 l 'l5l06b 3!336294

1725743 (163.619) (4,350668) (2,678,967) 15,972,411)

- 4,610,000

. 316,991

- 4,610,@0

- 314,5632 428

(314,563) - 12.006, (422) (316991)

4.610.000 lt22t 4610000

2, 2,915 2,575,111 3,397,954 5,346,381 138!??91

- 143,933 t2,r!,668) (2,679,389) (r,362,471)

719,049 $ 3.157,236 $ 2,666,9s2 $ 1

The notss b he lnandal shtsEnts are an .bg6l

ROMANTORO &CO-, CSP Cenif.d Pubti. Acouatants and Busi"es Consultonts

POBOX3043 YAUCOPR 0069E lU3 TEL (787)8566220 FAX: (787 ) 856'6213
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVEBNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITIOT'I

FOR TTIE FISCALYEAB ENDED JUNE 30' 2013

TOTAL FUND BALANCES - GOVERNIiIENTAL FUNDS.......... . " " " " ..-

Amounls reported lor Govemmenlal Aclivities in lhe Slalemeni ol Net Position are dillerent because:

Capilal Assets used in governmental activities are not linancial resources and therefole are

nol reported in lhe lunds. ln lhe cufienl period lhese amounts are:

$9,199,206
76,826,755

(21.357.184)

(20,222,000)
(2,781,191)

(913,171)

043,786)
(256,266)
(214,831)

s'r2,499,890

64,668,777

588,890

(24.531,2451

$_5322fiU

Total Capital Assets.........

Some olthe l\Iunicipalily's receivables willbe collecled alteryear end, but ale not

available soon enoughto paylorlhe current peiod's expendilure and therefore,

are deferred in the lunds.

Some liabililies are not due and payable in the current pedod and therelore, are nol repoded

in the lunds. Those liabililies consist of:

General Bonds and Notes Payab1e............ ..........

Non Depreciable Capilal Assets...........

Depreciable Capital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

Compensated Absences

Propedy Tax Debt- Law 42................

Property Tax Debt - Law 146................ . .....

Stale Health lnsuance Administration........... .. ..

Landlill Closure and Post-Closules Cosls.

Total Long-Tem Liabililies

TOTAL NET POSITIOI'I OF GOVERNiiTENTAL ACTIVITIES

See accompanying Notes lo Basic Financial Statements.

ROMAN TORO & CO.. CSP Ce ilied Public Accountants and Business Contukmts

PO Box 3043 YALtCo PR 00698-3043 TEL. (787) 856'6220 FAx: (787) 8s6'6233

18



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF BEVENUES, EXPENDITUBES, AND CHAI'IGES
''rH 

iulioirr-lrce or GovEBNMENTAL FUNDs ro rHE srATEli'tENT oF AcrlvlrlEs

FOB THE FISCALYEAR ENDEDJUNE 30,2013

Amounts reported lor Govemmental Activities in the Statemeni ol Aclivilies are dillerent because:

Governmental lunds report capitaloutlays as expendilures. However, in lhe Slatement ol

Activities the cosl ol those assets is allocated over their esiimated useful lives and reporled

as depreciation expense. ln the cu(ent peiod, these amounis aIe:

NET CHANGE IN FUND SALANCES - TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Capilal A$sets Addilions..

Property Tax Debl - Law 42.............

Ploperty Tax Debl - Law 146...... .. ... . ....... .. .. ..

Estimaled Landfillolosure and Posttlosule Care C0s1 ...... .. . . "
Compensated absences .

Claims and Judqmenls ..

TotalAddilional Expenditures .. ....... .. .. .""

CHANGE lN NET POSITION OF GOVERNIiIENTAL ACTIVITIES .................... " " "'

Deprecialion Expense......
Excess of Capilal Assets Additions ovel Depreciation Expense... ..

Some ol the Municipality's revenueswillbe collecled atler year end' bul are nolavailable

soon enough lo paylorthe curent pedod's expenditures andlherelore, are defeffed

lhefunds. The lollowing amounl replesented these revenues from pdor yeal .. ..- " " '

Some o, the Muoicipalily's revenues willbecollecled after year end, but are not available

soon enough lo paylorlhe cunenl period's expenditures and therelore, are defelred

the lunds. The following amount represenled these revenues lrom currentyear. "

Debl proceeds provide cufienl linancial resources lo governmenlal lunds, but issujng debl

increases long- term liabilities in the Statemenl ol Net Position ln the cufient period lhese

amounts are....................-

Repayment of debt proceeds principalis expendilure in the governmental funds, butihe repayment

redules Long-Term Liabilities in the Stalemenl ol Net Position ln the currenl year the

repayments werc..............

Bepayment ol long-tem principal is expenditure in lhe govemmental lunds, bul the repaymenl

redu;es Long-Teim Liabililies in lhe Slatement ol Nel Posilion ln ihe currenl year' lhe

repaymenis wele:

9,251,412

12.231.172\

23,6611

7,568
16,267

(53,278)

1.250.000

$ (1,362,471)

7,020,240

(519,109)

588,890

(4,610,000)

1,545,000

1.244.220

s3.9Q0.n0

See accompanying Noles to Basic Financial Statements.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP CefliJied Ptblic Accou,*ants and Businets Consubants

PO BoX 3043 YAUCO PR 0A698'3M3 ' TEL. ( 787 ) 8s6-6220 FAx: (787) 8s6'6233
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COMI\{ONWEALTH OF PI]FRTO RICO
MTNICIPALNY OT SAN SBASTIAN

S TATEMENT OT NET POSMON. PROPRTETARY TIII\D

"ne 
l0- 2013

ASSETS:

Cash

Accounts receivables

MisceUaneous prepaid €Penses

Totalcurrerl assets

Innd
BuiidinE and othcrdeprciable assets, net ofaccumllaled deprcciation

Total capital as s ec

Tot l Asseas

LIABILITIES:

Curenl tiabilities :

Mortgage payable

Accounts payable

Ac.rued liabilities

Tenant securny d€posits

Total currenl liabilities

Non{unent liabilitbs:

MonSage payable

Tolal liabilities

NET POSITION

Invested in Capital Assets, Net ofRElaled Debt

Restricted d€posits

Total net Pos ition

Toasr UaHlilics ,rdNet Pociiior

385.tU5

$ 128,083

4.525

r38.162

58.150

1.320.582

1.t78.932

16,638

l__]-g]_UlL

$ 112,909

45,3t]5

12.368

14133

422.941

tu116

638,231

627.792

385.m5

1,095.790

$ 1,918,737

see acconpanying notes to basic firmcial statemnrs- 20

ROMAN TORO a CO , CSP Cenified Pttblic Accountants and Businest Consultants
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COMMOI{WEILTH O[ PT]IRTO RJCO

MT]MCIPALITY OF SAN SIBASTIAN
STATEMENT OF REVINIJES, flPE{S6' AND CIIANGES IN

FTJND NE'I POSMON. PROPRJEIARY NJND

IOR THEMCAL YIAR ETDED

B us iness -b!e
Actidties

REVINLIES

Orher

rxPfNs[s

U(ililies

opemting aod Imintenancc

Tx)€s and insurancc

Opcrathg inco'E

NON OPMATING Rtr1,[Nt]ES (D(P[I.{StrS)

Ioteresl on m)figage

Total non operaling rc!cnues (expenses)

Net Change

Fund Nct Position, bcginnirg

NET POSMON, fND OF I'EAR

$ 628,685

d30,290

t$.44',1

r9,820

t9,681

44.110

t34,641

558,319

71.911

2,883

(s2.02s)

(49,t46)

\fI/2.965

$ 1,@5,7m

Se€ acconpanying notes to basic lmancial staterEnts.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Certifred Public Aiountants and Busin€ss Consultants

Po Box 3043 YAUCO PR 00698 3u3 TEL. (787) 856 6220 FAx: (787) 856 6233
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CO i'OMTYEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

TTUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS- PROPFIETARY FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

Bus ines s-tlpe
Actiities

CASHFII)WS TROM OPMATING ACTTVIIIES

Cash received fromlenants and HtlD

Othercash recei!ed

625.496

155.866

(23.788)

l5l.87l

$ 128,083

(52.139)

(106,569)

(245.6)9)

(405.()(,)

(30.877)

181,860

(16,714)

16,'714

2,883

Salaries and wages

Utili(ies

opemting and nlaintenance

Miscelaneous taxes and insunnce

Net cash provided by opemting acdvilies

CASH trl-ow IROM CAPITAI- AND RILATED

IINANCING ACTIVIMS
Interest prid in capitrldebl
Mongagc princ ipal PaYrEn t

Purchase of capital assets

N(r ca\h u'ed h cdprl0land relflleJ fmancing acli\ itie'

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Deposits to resene forrcplacenEnl and intercsl rclrined in accounl

Wilhdr.twal ftom tuserve for rcplacenBnt accounl

Deposits lo resene for ins

W ithdmwal fron res erve iorinsumnce escrow

Intcresr on inl,estliEnl

Ncr cash provided hy inYesiing acd!ities

Nel decrease in cash

Cnsh at beginning ofYear

Cash at end ofycar

(38.4{D)

(60,480)

(r23,678)

(19,820)

(l13,s86)

$s,1u)
(401.748)

225,1s3

ROMAN TORO & CO-, CSP Ceftified Public Accountants a d Business Consultants

Po Box t043 YAUCO PR 00698 3043 ' TEL. (787) 856 6220 FAx: (787) 856'6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS. PBOPRIETAFY FUND (CONTINUED)

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

R.MONC]ILIATION OF OPMATING tr{COI\ATO

CASH II-oWS TROM OPMATINGACIIITIIES

Openting incorE

AdjustllEnt to rEconcilc change in net position to

netcash pmvided by opemting activities:

Depreciation

0ncrEas e) decrease in:

R€ceivables

Miscellaneous prepaid expenses

Tenant security deposits

Increase (decrcase) in:
Accounls Payable- 30days

Payroll
Tenant security deposits

'11.911

134,641

(3. r89)

e.a2)
386

61',7

153,382

Ner cash provided by oper,rting aclivilies s ll5.35i

Sce acconpanying .otes lo basic financial statemnrs

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cerlified Public Atcountants and Business Consuhants

Po BOX 3043 YAUCO PR 00698 3C/,3 ' TEL (787) 856'6220 FAx: (787) 856'6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

lilUNlClPAl-lTY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The [,rtunicipatily of San Sebastien, Puerto Bico (Municipalily) is a local governmenla] wilh lull legislative, liscal and

administrative p;wer to operate as a govemmentai under LaW No. 81 ol Augusl 30, 1991, as amended, known as lhe

Autononous Municipalv Act ol the Connonweafth ol Pueno Rico (Law No. 81 )

The Municipality,s govemmenlal system consists ol execulive and legislative branches. The constilution ol the

Commonweitth ol prierto Rico (the 'aommonwealth') provides for lhe separation of powers of the execulive, legislative and

judicial branches. A Mayor, elecled every four years by the cilizens, exercises the executive power of the l\,lunicipality. The

iegislative power is exercised by lhe ltrtunicipal Legislature, which is also elected every lout yeals. The General Justice Court

System olthe Commonweallh, which hasiuisdiction overlhe Municipalily, exercises theiudiciary power'

The lrunicipalily assumes responsibility for providing seNices lo its citizens related to public housing, welfare, public salety,

health, sanitalion, educaiion, cullure, recreation, uban development, and many other generaland administrative duties.

The accounling policies ol the l\4unicipalily conform lo accounting pdnciples generally accepted in the United States of

America as applicable to governmental unils. The following is a summary olthe more signilicant policies.

The accompanying basic linancial statements of the Municipality have been prepared in confomity wilh accounting principles

generally aicepted in the United Slales ol Amedca (GMP) as plesc bed by the Govemmenlal Accounting Standalds Board

[CnSg). fhe cnsg is the standard-setting body for govemmenlal accounting and linancial repoding. The GASB pedodica]ly

update; ils codilicalion ol the existing Govemmental Accounting and Financial Heporling Slandards which, along with

subsequent GASB pronouncemenls (Stalements and lnterpretalions) conslitules GMP lol govemmental unils'

ln June 1999, GASB issued Statement No.34, Basb Financiat statenents -and Managenenls Discussion and Analysis -
lor State and Locat covenments (GASB No. 34). This slatement established new iinancial repoding requirements lor state

and local govemments. on July 1, 2003, the Municipality adopled lhe provisions of GASB No. 34 as wellas other statements

relerred to below.

The accompanying basic ,inancial statements presenl the linancial position and lhe results ol operations ol the Municipality

and its various iun-ds and fund types. The basic financial stalemenls are prcsenled as o, June 30, 2013, and lor he liscalyear

lhen ended. The more signilicant of lhese accounling policies are described below and, where appropliate, subsequent

pronouncements will be lelerenced.

According to the linancial reporling model eslablished by GASB No. 34, lhe minimum required linancial slalemed

presentaiion applicable to the MunicDality is composed ot the tolowing elements: (1) govemment-wide linancial slalemenls

[iOWfSl, tZt governmental lund iinancii stalements (GFFS), (3) noles lo basic linancial statemenls, and (4) required

supplementary inlomation (RSl).

The required supptementary inlomalion, which consists of a managemenl discussion and analysis (MD&A), is inlormation

p,"r"ntirO 
"tong 

iritt, tur jeparate fiom, the Municipal1y's basic linancial statements. The MD&A is a narrative reporl thal

introouce. tte iccorpunying basic linancial stalemenlg and provides an anal!'lical overview of lhe l4unicipalily's linancial

aciivities lor lhe year end;d iune 30, 2013, based on the lrunicipalily's knowledge oi the lransactions, evenls and conditions

rellected in lhe basic linanciat statements. The MD&A also highlighls cenain key llscal policies that control the Municipality's

operations.

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Cerlified Public Acto tants and Business Consuhants

PO BoX 3043 YAUCO PR 006983A3 ' TEL (787) 856 6220 FAx: (787) 8s6'6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FIIIANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUIiIMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCoUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

As previously menlioned, on July 1, 2003, other statements and intepretations were also adopled in conjunction and

simu1aneously with GASti No. 34. Those statemenls and interpretations are: (1) GASB Statemenl No.33 - Accounling and

iiiiiat neioang bt Nonexchange Tmnsactions, (2) 6A58 Stalemeni No. 37 - Easrc Financial statenents - and

Managenenis Disiusstnn and Analisis - for State and Local Govennqts: On ibus, (3) GASB Stalement No. 38 - Cerlain

Finafrat Statenent Note Disciosur;s and (4) GASB lntepretalion No. 6 - Fecognition and Measurenent of Cetain Liabilites

and Exqnditues in Govennental Fund Fintanciat Statements, (4) GASB Statement No.63, Financial Repoiing of Delered

oufilows of Resouces, Delered lnltows ol Resowces, and Net Position, and (5) GASB Stalemenl No.65, ltens Previously

Reponed as Assets and Liabililie$.

GASB No. 34 also required ihat the accounling for all governmental activities reported in the GWFS be based on applicable

pronouncements issued by the Financial Accounting standards Boad (FASB) and ils predecessol bodies, such as lhe

Accounting principles Boaid (ApB), issued on or belore November 30, 1989, provided those pronouncemenis do notconllicl

with or c;tradict GASB pronouncemenls. Accordingly, in coniunction and simullaneously with lhe adoption ot GASB N0 34,

lhe Municipalily also adopted the lollowing pronouncements: (1) APB Opinion No 20 - Accounlng Changes, (2) APB Opinion

No. 21 - lnb;est on Receivabtes and iayabtes, (3) FASB Staiement No 5 - Accoun ng lor Co,tmgercies and (4) FASB

Statement No. 16 - Pior Peiod Adiustnents. The Municipality has elected lo not apply all slatemenls and inleQretalions

issued by FASB after November 30, 1989.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The accompanying basic financial slalements include all departmenls and organizations unils whose lunds are under the

custody and co;tr;t of ihe l\,rtunicipaliiy. ln evatuating the Municipality as a reporting entity, management has addressed all the

potenti;l component units. The decision to include any polenlial component unit in the reporting entity was made byapplying

ihe provisions of GASBS A , Detennining whether cetain oganizations are conponent units - an Anendnent ol GA9B 14

The basic critedalor including a polential component unitwithin the reporting enlity is il potential componenl units arelinancially

accountable and other legally sepaEle organizations lorwhich the l!,lunicipality is nol linancially accounlable but lhe natule and

signilicance o,lheir relaliodhip with the Municipality may be such that exclusion ol lhe financia! stalements lom those of the

Minicipality would cause the iccompanying basic linancial slatemenls lo be misleading or incomplele. Accordingly, a legally

separale organization would be reponed as a componenl unit ofthe Municipality if allof the lollowing criieria are met:

.Thelvlayorappointsavotingmaioityolanolganizalion'sgovemingbodyand,either(1)tfieMunicipalityhastheability
to impo;e its will on that organization or (2)ihe organizalion has the polenlial to provide specilic linancial benelils to, or

impose specilic linancial burdens on the Municipality

. The economics resources, lor which the lrunicipality is enlitled, either leceived or held by the separale organizalion,

are entirely oI almosl enlkelylorthe direct benelit otthe Municipality or its constiluents

The lvlunicipality,s management has concluded lhat based on the aloremenlioned crileda, there are no legally separate entities

o, o,ganizaioni ttrat sn-ould be reported as component units ol the Municipality lor the liscal ye ended June 30, 2013.

Acco;dingly, these basic tinancial slatemenls present onlythe Municipality as the leporling entity'

These linancial stalements present the respective linancial position ol the govemmenlal aclivities, each maior lund, and the

aflrelate remaining runa iniormation ol the Municipality, as of June 30, 2013, and lhe rcspeclive changes in financial position,

where applicable, thereol lorthe liscalyear then ended.

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Ceflilied Publit Accou,tants and Business Co sukants
poBox3043 YALTCO PR 00698-3043 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAX: (787)8s6-6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAI.I SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE SASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. MEASUREI ENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

GOVERNMENT.WDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The govemment-wide linancial statements (the Statement of Nel Position and the Statement olActivities) are leported using the

econ;mic resources measurement locus and lhe accrual basis ol accounling. Revenue is [ecorded when eamed and expenses

are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless olthe liming of related cash llows. Granl and similar items are recognized

as revenue as soon as alleligibility lequirements have been mel.

GOVERNMENTAT FUND FINANCIAL STATEI ENTS

The govemmenlal lund linancial stalements are reported using the current linancial resources measurement locus and the

modiiied accrual basis ol accounling. Revenues are recorded when susceplible to accrual; as soon as il is both measurable and

available. 'Available' means colleclible witiin the current peiod orsoon enough lhereafter, normallylrithin sixty {60)days,lo be

used lo pay liabilities olthe current pedod. Expenditures are generally recognized when lhe lelaled liability is incu(ed.

The exception 10 this general rule is lhe p ncipal and inlerest on general obligation long-tem debt and compensaled absences,

il any, are recognized when due.

ln applying the'susceptible to accrual'concepl lo ifltergovemmental revenues. (fedelal grants) pu6uanl to GASBS N0 33,

ncbiittS ana finanaa Repoting lor Nonexchange lransaclions (the Municipality may acl as either provider or recipient), lhe

provider s-hould recognize liabiliti;s and expenses and lhe recipient should recognize receivables and revenue when the

applicable eligibility requirements including time requiremenls, are mel. Resources transmitted belore the eligibility requirements

aie met strouiO, under most circumstancea, be reporled as advances by the provider and delerred revenue by the recipient.

There are essenlially two types of revenue. For some granls, lunds musl be expended by the l\,'lunicipalily on the specific

purpose or project bilore any amounts will be reimbulsed. Revenue is, lherelore, Iecognized as expendilures ale incurred to

ihe extent ivailable. For the olher revenue, moneys are virlualry unrestricted and are generally revocable only for lailurc lo

compty wittr prescribea compliance requirements. ihese resources are rcflecled as revenue at the time ol receipt or earliel il

the susceptiblelo accrualciteria is met

Expenditures are generally recorded y/hen a liability is incuned, as under accrual accounling. Modifications lo the accrual basis

of accounling include lhe lollowing:

.! Employee,s vested annual vacation and sick leave is recoded as expenditure when ulilized. The amounl ol accumulaled' 
unnliiiru..tion and sick leave unpaid at June 30, 2013, has been reported only in lhe government-wide financial

slalemenls.

C. FINANCIALSTATEMENTPRESENTATION

Thebasiclinaflcialstalementsincludebolhgovemmenl.wide(basedonlheMunicipalityasawhole)andlundlinancial
.irf.r"nft. Wnif" tft" pt*ious linancial reponi;g modelemphasized tund types (lhe totalof allfunds ol a particular type)' in the

new linancial modet tie locus is on either the-[,lunicipality as a whole, or majol individual lunds (wilhin the basic financial

rt"t"r"rtrt. s"ti li,," g"remment-wide and lund linancial staiements (within lhe basic linancial slalemenls) categodze pdmary

activities as either govemmental or busine$s type

ROMAN TORO &CO-,
PO BOX 3013 YAUCO PR

CSP Ce ified Public Accountants on.l Business Consuiants

006s8-3043 . TEL (787) 856 6220 FAX: (787) 856 62i3



COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

[,tUNlClPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEMENT PBESENTATION (CONTINUED)

GOVEBNMENT.WDE FIT{ANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government,wide linancial statemenls (the slatement ol Nel Position and the slalement of Aclivilies) report information ol

attitr"e 
""ririries 

ot rne urunicipality. For mosipafl, lhe e6ect of intedund activity has been removed,rom these govemment'wide

iinancial statements. Govemmental aclivilies, which nomally are suppoded by taxes and intergovemmenlal revenues' are

refortea separatetytrom tusiness-lype aclivilies, which rely to asignilicant e(ed on 

'lees 

and charges lorsupport'

The focus ol the Statement ol Net Posiiion is designed to be similal lo bottom line resulls for the Municipality and its

oovemmental aclivities. This statement, tor the lirst ime, combines and consolidates govemmenlal fund's current financial

iesources (shotl-term expendable resources) wilh capilal assels and long-term obligations

The Statemenl of Net position presenls the reporting entities' assets and liabililies, with lhe difference reporled as nel position

Nel position is reported in lhree categoliesl

.! lnvested in Caoital Assets. Net ol Related Debt - These consists of capilal assets, nel ol accumulated depleciation and

:ffiSlorbonds,noteS'andotheIdebllhatareattribuledto1heacquisition,
conslruclion, or improvement ol those assets

+ Blguiglg!- These resulls when conslraints are placed the use ol lesources, which can.be either extemally imposed by' 
ffiiiffir"nio,r, .o;iributorc, and the like, or imposed by law lhrough constitutional provisions or enabling legislalion.

.}Unrc-stricted-Theseconsistsofresourceswhichdonotmeetthedelinilionollhetwoprecedingcategoies'Unrestdcted' 
o,ces olten are d"signated, to indicale that management does nol consider them to be available for general operalions'

Un*triJaa ,"rout"aa o-nen have constraints that arJimposed by managemenl, but can be removed or modilied

when bolh restdcted and unrestdcted esources are available lor use, geneElly il is the Municipalily's policy to use lestdcled

resources riEl, lhen the unresldcled resources as they are needed'

The statement of Aclivities is tocused on bolh the gross and nel cosls per lunctional calegory' The stalemenl reduces gross

"*p"n.".irrfrAing 
l.p,*ialion) by related progE; revenues operaling and capilalglants This is intended to summadze and

simplily the use/s;narysis olcost olva ous govemmenlal seNices'

GOVERNMENTAL FUNO FINAT{CIAL STATEMENTS

The fund linancial statements (the Balance Sheet and the Stalement ol Flevenues' Expenditules' and Changes in Fund

ffi;;;) ;;,; ;b""*e, v!ry simitar to liie rinanciar statements presented in rhe prcvious financial repodng model

ffi"iil r,.i,ii" 
". 

tt. r4oi tunis in tne govemmental category' Non-maiorlunds are summarized into a single column'

ROMAN TORO & CO.,
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COMIiIONWEALTH OF PUERTo BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONIINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMIiIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (ooNTINUED)

C. FINANCIAL STATEIiIENT PBESENTATION (CONTINUED)

Traditional userc ol governmental linancial slatements will lind the Fund Financial slatements presentalion more familiar' The

fr.rr i. 
". 

Ll"j, iri,a., rather than the previous linancial model's ,und types The Govemmental Major Fund Slatements are

presented on current linancial rcsources and modilied accrual basis ol accounting

This is the manner in which lhese lunds are normally budgeled. This presenlalion deemed most appropliate lo (a) demonstrale

leqal and covenant compliance, (b) demonstrate ihe s-ource and use ol liquid lesources, and (c) demonstlale how lhe

Municipalitys aclualexpeience conloms to the budgeted liscalplan.

since the govenmenlal ,und slatemenls are presented in a dillerent measurement locus and basis o, accounling than the

govemmeni-wide slatemenls, reconcilialion is prcsented and a separate explanation loreach dilferences

The l\rlunicipality reports ils linancial posilion (Balance Sheet) and results ol operalions {Statemenl ol Revenues, Expenditures

il il";l;; il Fund Batance) in funds, whi;h are considered separate accounting enlilies. Tie operations ol each {und arc

accountejtor wift'in a set of sell-balancing actounts. Fund accounting segregales funds according lo their intended purpose

and is used to aid managemenl in demonslialing compliance with legal, financial' and contractual provisions'

ThenewmodelasdefinedinGAsBsNo'34establishedcriteda(percentageoltheassets,liabilities,revenues,ol
exoendilures/exoenses ol either lund calegory in lhe govemmenlal lund) ior the determinalion ol maiol lunds. The non-major

iuiai .i. .orlifn"a in. ringle cotumn in th; f;nd linancial stalements. The Municipality leports the following maiollunds:

GeneralFund-ThisislhegeneralopelalinglundoftheMunicipality'ltisusedtoaccounlloralllinancialresources,
except those required lo be accounted lor in anolhel lund

Head Start Fund - This is the ,und used lo account lor all transactions of lhe Head Slart Proglam The objectives of

it;fiffii;to p*ide comprehensive health, educational, nutritional, social and other developmenlal services

p,i.ltify" r" *".*ii"frv aisadvantaged pre'school chitdren and inlanls and loddlers so that lhe children wi anain

school readiness.

DebtServiceFund-Thisisthelundusedtoaccountloltheaccumulationofresourcesforandthepaymentol'
general long-term OeUt prlncipal, interest, and related cosls'

Loans Fund - This is lhe lund used io accounl lor all financial resources and kansaclions Ielated to lhe loans lor

,"*iffi;prpil and capilal oullays ol lhe l'junicipality' which is financed by loans lrom lhe Governmenl

Development Bank ol Puerto Rico.

R1MAN T)RO & CO., CSP Cenified Pubtic Accountonts and Business Consuhants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUlilli,lARY OF SlGNlFlCAtlT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. FINANCIALREPOBTINGPRESENTATION

The accounls ol the Municipality are organized on the basis of funds, each il which is considered a separate accounting enlity.

The operations ol each fund are accounled for with a separate set o, self-balancing accounts lhal compise ils assets, liabilities,

lund equity, revenues, and expenditures. Fund types are aslollows:

General Fun+ ls the geneal operating lund of the l\,rtunicipality. lt is used to account lor all governmental activity,

excepllhose required to be accounted loI in anotherlund

SDecial Reverue FunGThis is lhe lund used 1o accouni for revenues dedved lrom local funds, slate grants or olher

re-$;aed rerenue sorrces. The uses and limitalions of each special revenue lund are specified by Municipality

ordinances or slate slatutes.

Debi Service Fund - This is the lund used to account for the accumulation ol resources lor and the payment 01,

general long-lerm debl pdncipal, interest, and relaled costs.

ceoital Proiects Fund - This is the lund used to account for financial resources used lor the acquisilion

.ffitrrrtionii;.io, .rpitat lacilities. The uses and limitalions of each capilal plojects lund are specilied

Municipality ordinances or slate slalutes.

E. FUND BALANCES

TheMunicipalityadopledtheplovisionsolGASBstatementNo,s4,FundBatanceRepolingandGovemnentalFundType
Ori,l,lt rr'ioisg s+1, wtrictr entranceo lhe usefulness of lund balance inlormation by providing clearer lund balance

i.rtiio"iiqii tf,a ,r,i o" more consistenlly applied. This siatemenl establishes lund balance classilicalions lhai comprise a

liii""iv l"tJ p,ir"trry on the exlenl to wtricn tne Authorily is bound to obserue constraints imposed upon ihe use ol

resources reponed in governmental funds.

PursuanltolheprovisionsofGASB54,lhelundbalancesamounlsarereportedasnonspendable,lesticted'committed,

"*[""i 
iro ,"iiiig";d, based on the relative slrenglh ol the constlaints that control how specilic amounts can be spent' as

described as lollo$/s:

.:. Nonspendable - Reptesenl resources that cannot be spent readily with cash or are,legally or contraciually required noi t0- 
tffiffi.g b,]t not limited lo inventodes, prepaid items, long-tem balances of loans and notes receivable.

* Restricted - ReDresent resources thal can be spent only tor lhe specific purposes slipulaled by constilulional provisions' fft"."f *or"i p,*iJers (extematty imposea Oy creditors or granlors). or ttuough enabling legislation (lhal is. legislalion

iii.i.i"rt.r 
" 

n"i, 
"r"nue 

source ;nd ;esticts its use). Efleitrvely, reslrictions may be changed or lifted only wilh the

consenl ol resource Providels.

* 99EI BS! - Represenl resources used lor specitic purposes, imposed by formal€ction ol the entily's highest level of
' 

t.a-rion *ring lrlt oiity il\,,lunicipal Legislature through iesolutions and ordinances) and can only be changed by similar

law, ordinance ar resolulion, no later lhan the end ol lhe liscal year'

OI

by
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COMIi,IONWEALTH OF PUERTo RlCo

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI'IT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

* Asqiglld - Fepresenl resources intended lo be used by lhe Municipality for specilic purposes bul do not meel the criteria
' ii 

"ur.ili.d 
., ,..tdcted or committed {g;;rally executive orders approved by the Mayor). lntent can be expressed by

ifr" 
-f,,fiir[ipif 

Gfi.t ", 
tfre Uayo, o, U[ 

"n 
offi;iat or body to whiih the lllunicipal Legislature delegales authority in

contormiw'witn A-utonomous lllunicipalities Acl ol Puerlo Rico, as amended. ln govemmental lunds other than the general

i*1, .t"igntd frnd b"l".ce rcpres;nb lhe remaining amount lhal is nol resticted orcommitted'

.! t nassioned - Represent the residual classification lor the Municipality's general lund and includes all spendable amounls' 
not .ffi*a in ihe other classifications. ln other lunds, the unassignid classilicalion is used only to report a detich

i"Lnr. i".rrti"s i,r. or.rspending lor specilic puposes iorwhich amounts had been restdcled' committed' or assigned

AtJUne30,2ol3,theaccompanyingfundlinancialslatementsreportedlundbalancesaSreslricted,assignedandunassigned'

F. BUDGETARY DATA

TheMunicipalityannuallyadoptstheBudgetResolutionlolallopelalinglundsol'thelvlunicipalityexceptlorcertain'restricted
iiirri,li ii 1;i6p"a",v 

'runds and SpecLt Bevenue Funds. Budgetat conlrol is legally mainlained at the lund level. The

iriiii]i i"p"i!li,",ig rhe mod1.d accruat basis ot accounling with encumbrance included as budgelary basis expenditures

if,""Mrril,pii,tyi Srdgl,t Resotution provides transler authoriti(1) to the Mayor and.the Management and Budget Direclor,

*itf,in .ni L.rui."n O"i"rtmenls and iunds, as long as the total budget of the lvlunicipality {net ol interlund translers) is nol

;;;;^;;; A] ilth"il;igement and Budget Dirdtor lo implemenl grant budgets as lhe grant applications are accepled bv

it. nirriilp.iitv; and (3) l;the lranagement and Budget Diiector to amend (r''appropdate) each new yeals budget' io the

"i.rl"i iJriLroi.g 
'd,rumbrances. -and/or 

unexpend'ed project/grant appropiations al yeal end Municipalitys Legislature

..iiJii 
.il,.iiiiirJi.i 

Of ;se ot the budgeted Legisrarure contingincy. and 1zt ttre approval ol supplemental appropriations

During the yeal, seveGl supplemental applopdalions were necessary'

The budqet columns (oiginal and tinal budgets) ot the Budgetary Comparison - General Fund rellect the o ginal budget and

,il ffiil;1d;eii;ili.h n.r" t."n alo;uiieo tor tegaiiy authorized revisions ol rhe annual budgels du ng the vear)

;6;;;;i;, ;;;u;.ralning prqecr appiopi;lions, eicumbrances, and unexpended grant appropdations' lapse at lhe end

ol each liscal year.

Amendmenlslothebudget,includingtranslers,requiretheapprovaloflheltlunicipalLegislalure.Unencumbeledappropdations
i;o.., ;itd;;; ;irh; ,;xt liscat yeir. The Municilitity toltows these procedures. in accbrdance with law, in orderto establish

lhe budgetary data reflected in the basic linancial slatemenls:

1. p or ot May 31 of each liscat year, the Mayor submits to the l\,lunicipal Legislalure a proposed budgel for the liscal year

commencing lhe lollowing July 1 in addilion ol a budgei message:

ROMAN TORO A CO. CSP Ce,tilied Public Accountants and Business Consuha ts

po aox sUS LAUCO PR 006s8'3r43 TEL' (787) 856'6220 FAX: (787)856'6233
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMIiIABY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CoNTINUED)

F. BUDGETARY DATA (COi'ITINUED)

2. The budgei document is available lor public inspeclion priorto its approvalby the Municipal Legislature;

3. The commissioner ol Municipal Aflairs examines the budget to vedfy il il complied with the law's slandards and sends it to

lhe l\,,layor lor any commenls or recommendalion belore lhe limited date establishes by the Law;

4. Pdor to June 30, the annualbudgel is legally enacled through passage ol the annual appropriation ordinance;

5.llabudgetisnotadoptedpriortotheendoltheendoflheliscalyear,theannua]budgellortheplecedingliscalyeal,as
approve-d by lhe Municipai Legislalure and the Mayor, is automatically renewed for the ensuing liscal yeal until a new

rffig"i i" ,ip,or"a rhii pemits the Municipality tocontinue making payments lor its operating and other expenses unlil

the new budget is aPproved;

6. Subsequenl to the enaclment ol the annual appropriation ordinance, lhe ltunicipal Legislature has the aulhorily to make-' 
n...*'i,y 

"r"nOrenis 
made during the liscat year and are rellecled in the budget inlomation included in lhe Budgetary

Comparison Schedule - General Fund;

7. Budgetary dala lor the special tlevenue Fund has not been presented in the accompanyiflg basic linancial slatemenls as

suclifunis ate budgeted overthe life ol the respeclive granl or plojecl and not on an annualbasis'

sincethebudgetarybasisdiflersfromaccounlingplinciplesgenerallyaccepledjnlheUnitedstalesolAmerica(GMP),actual
amounts for lhie General Fund in lhe accompanfrng Budget;ry Comparison Schedule, is presented on lhe budgetary basis to

enhance comparabilily.

The principal diflerences between lhe budgetary and GAAP bases are the lollowingl

1. Encumbrances are tecorded as expendilures under the budgelary basis and as a reserve of {und balances under GAAP.

2.Thenon€xonelatedpofionollhepropedytaxadvancesalepresenledaslevenueinthebudgelarybasisandasother
linancing sources under GAAP.

3. lnterlund lransaclions ofthe Generaland special Bevenue Funds are nol included in the budgetary basis

4. Cerlain accrued liabilities and other debls are nol included in the budgelarybasis'

5. Cerlain revenues slsceplible to accrual, i.e., bolh measulable and avaihble, are not included in the budgetary dala

Atl encumbance appropriations in the operating budgel lapse at lhe end ol lhe fiscalyear' Propedy laxes collected dudng lhe

,rri""tl.iiov inJtrr.tipat Hevenue coltectiin ce-nter lFiscat Agent) are presented as revenues in the accounting basis bul

are not consideled in lhe budgelary schedule.
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COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES IO THE BASIC FINAT{CIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE I - SUMIiIARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES (CONTINUED)

F. BUDGETARY DATA (CONTINUED)

The speciallunds ol lhe Special Hevenue Fund have nol been included in the budgetary compason because balances ale not

orjg,i.d. lf.o, th. ordgel prepared lor lhe Federal Finance Awards ProgEms included ln the Maior and Non Majol Funds is

l"rJa on , p,ogr", p.;od which is not necessarity a year. Accordingry,lt's not practical to present an annual compalison ol

budgel for such programs.

G. CASH, CASH EOUIVALENT AND INVESTIiIENT

The Finance Director ollhe Municipality is responsible for invesling the available resources in certificates ol deposit and other

ri]ort-r'"- i*..tr"nrr. rnvestmenis are made from the available combined lunds ol the Municipality and, accordingly, it is not

;ractical to disclose certilicates ol deposit and other shon{erm investmenls individually by lund in the combined linancial

if"t"ranfr lni"r"rt eamed on certificates ol deposil and olher shortlem inveslmenls are recognized as revenue in the

d.n"r"r irno. Cash in the Special Revenue, De6t Service and capital Proiect Funds are restricled; accordingly, resources

avaihble were nol used lol pool investments.

under the laws and regutalions ol lhe commonwealth, public lunds deposiled by the Municipalily in commelcial banks must be

fullv coltateralized lor ihe amounts deposited in excess ol lhe federal depository insurance generally provided by the Fedelal

o.i*i in"*... coaoralion (FDic). All securities pledged as collaleral are held by agenis designated by lhe

Commonwealth's Secrelary ol the Treasury, bul not in lhe Municipality's name

cash with tiscalagent represents propeny lax collections retained by the Municipal Revenue Colleclion center and undisbursed

f*"r0" ot aartain Uondr, loans or gnnis which are maintained in a cash custodian account by the Govemment Development

Bank oflhe Commonwealth ol Puedo Hico.

cash balance recognized in the Debt seryice Fund is reslricled for the paymenl oi the Municipalitys obligalions, and olhers arc

"s,io.o 
io, ,prriri. proiecls, such as lhe acquisition or construction oi perman€nt improvemenb. The sinking lund is

,.inl"i."a lV it. ooi.ti..nt.t Development Bank ol Puerto Rico, agency which acts as lhe insurer and payer ol lhe

Municipality's bonds and notes issued in accordance with law

H. RECEIVABLES

Receivable are slated net ol estimated allowances for uncollectible accounls, which are delemined upon past colleclion

"r-p"i"naa "na 
auuenr economic conditions. Receivable lrom Fedelal Govemment represents amounts owed to the

M;nicipality lor reimbursement of expendilures incured pu6uant to lederallylunded prcgrams'

I. INVENTORIES

The General, Special Revenue and Capital Proiecl Funds, purchases otlice and p ntng supplies' gasoline' oil and othel

iiiririii,]ilrpirifial toiconsumprron. rne cost ot purchases is recorded as expendilure in the appropriate lund and lhe

inventory is nol recorded in lhe basic linancial stalements.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 - SUMITARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

J. CAPITAL ASSETS

proDedv. olanl and equiDmenl purchased or acquiled is caried al hislodcal cost or eslimated hislo cal cost. conlributed assets

","7"6ij.J 
.if"i, ri,].'rriet vaiue as ol the daie received. Other cosls incufied lor repairs and mainlenance is expensed as

incurred.

Depreciation on allassets is provided on the slraighl-line basis overlhe following eslimated uselullives:

Buildings and building implovements

lnfraslructu re

Vehicleg and equipmenl

Furniture and fixtures

20-50
25-50
5-20
5-10

K. LONG.TERMOBLIGATIONS

The liabilities repoded in the govemmenl-wide linancial stalements included general and special obligation bonds and notes,

anO other tong-tirm tiaOitities, iuch as vacalion, sick leave, litigalion, longlem liabililies to olher governmental entilies.

ln the fund linancial slatements, govemmental lund types recognize bond issuances cosl, dudng the currenl pedod. The lace

,.orJoi O.Ut irtu.a i. repordd as other linancing sources, while bond issuance costs, whelher oI nol wilhheld lrom the

aclualdebl proceeds leceived, are repoded as expendilules.

L. COIiIPENSATEDABSENCES

The Municipality accrues accumulated unpaid vacation and sick leave and associaled employee-related cosls when eamed (oI

"Jir"irJii't" "*rof ry the emptoyee. The Municipality's employees are granted 30 days ol vacations and 18 days ol sick

;;;;;;ilt. v;.;fr.;"'may oe accumulated up to i maximum of sixtv (60) davs and sick leave up to a maximum ol ninetv

tioj aryt. f"'lt. t""tt 
"t 

erirployee resignation, lhe employee is paid lor accumulated vacation days up lo the maximum

ii['*.0]i.p"iirion rro, 
"mptoyment 

prioi to use of all oi parl ol the sick leave terminates all dghts lor compensalion, except

n #pfG, *rf,t"" V.ars'ol iervice who are enlifled to sick leave pay up lo the maximum allowed. The Municipality accrued

a liabilityior compensaled absences, which meel lhe lollowing criteda:

1 , The Municipalily s obligation rclating to employee's dghts io receive compensalion for luture absences is attdbulable lo

employee s seruices akeady rendeled.

2, The obligation lelales to iights lhal vest oI accumulaie.

3. Paymenl olthe compensalion is probable.

4. The amount can be reasonably eslimated.

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Cenified Public Accountants and Businets Consuhants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIiIENTS (CONTINUE0)

NOTE 1 - SUIi,IMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L. COiTPENSAIEDABSENCES(CONIINUED)

ln accordance with the above crite a and requirements as established by GASBS No. 16; the Municipalily has accrued a liability

i"il"rp".ta"J .o."rres, which has bein earned but nol taken by Municipality's employees' For the government-wide

,t"r"r"it., tta currenl porlion is the amount estimated lo be used in lhe lollowing year. For the governmenlal funds

iiaiemenrs, arr or rne compensaled absences are considered long-lem and therelore, are not a lund liability and represents a

reconciling ilem between lhe fund level and governmenl'wide plesenlations'

ThelollowingisasummaryolchangesinthebalanceolcompensatedAbsencesfortheliscalyealendedJune30,20l3,

RqMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cerlified Pubtit: Acco ntants and Businets Cottsultants

Po BOX 3043 vAUCO PR 10698'3043 TEL. (787) 8s6-6220 FAX: (787 ) 856'623 3

BALA}ICE
JUNE30.2012

$2f,2L91i

NEW ISSUES

s!@

RETIREI{EI{TS
AND CURBENI

MATURATES

BALANCE
JUNE30.20r3

$ 2.781-191

CURREI{I

ESE19!

$2!&

LONG.TERTI

PSBIIO!

s_2JU-191

M. INSURANCE

fhe Municipality has insurance coverage lor its public lacililies, primarily to provide plolection lrom catastrophic losses. Also,

piirrip"i 
"t[rii1i "r 

tn. rr.lunicipatity aricovered under various surety bonds. The Secretary of the Treasury Department oflhe

bommonwealth of puerto Flico is lhe agenl commissioned to place all ol lhe lv'lunicipality's insurance coverage Corcsponding

i,-rrr-rr! p.v"ut 
"" 

-rhhetd bythe liunicipat Revenue coliection center lrom quartedy advances ol annualproperly lax and

subsidy send lo the Municipality

N. INTEBFUNDTRANSACTIONS

lnterlund ttansaclions are rellected as loans, reimbursements or translels' Loans are repoded as receivables and payables as

appiip,i"ta anJ 
"r" 

aroi*r to elimination upon consolidalion. Beimburcements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the

"iiroinare 
oenetitinq tund and reduces its relaled cost as a reimbursemenl All olher interlund transactions are lreated as

;fi;;;.'i,;;;i;; ;.M;.n go*n."nr.r o, p,op,ietary tunds are neled as parl ot the reconcitiation to lhe govemment-wide

..frrr.i p"r."i.i* ff,e l4"unicipality has thelollowing types ot reciprocaland nonrcciprocalinterlund aclivities:

*lnterlundloans-Fepresenlamountsprovidedwithalequhementfollepaymenl,whichalerecoldedas.duelrom,inthe' 
ffi===--gorar1*mattund and 'due to' in lhe bo(ower govemmenlal fund. interfund receivables' which ale not considered

cunentiy available financial resources, are repoded is advances For amounls.nol expected to be collected wilhin a

i..."rior, p.ii"J, irr.,lrnd receivables/payables are reduced to the estim€ted realizable.,ialue and lhe amounl lhal is not

expected 10 be repaid is reported as alranslerfrom lhe govemmenlallund lhal made the loan

* lnterlund translers - Bepresent llows ot assets (permanenl leallocaiion ol,linancial resoutces among governmental

t nds\ without eouivalenl llows ol assets in return and withoul a requirement lor repayment Translers are reported as

iiii.rihi'.i"si,1,-;rl. ih. go;"in."ntui trnd ."Ling transfers and as olher linancing sources in the govemmental fund

receiving transfers.

.|nteundreimbursements-Represenlrepaymenlslromlhegovemmenlallundlesponsibleforpadiculalexpendituresor
expenses lo the governmenlal fund that initially paid rorlhem.



COii,IMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO B|CO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1 -SUI ABY OF SlGNlFlCAtlT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

o. CLAltils AND JUDGMENTS

The estimated amounl ol the liability tor claims and iudgmenls, il any, which is due on demand, such as lrom adjudicated or

""tifJ 
if"ir., is recorded in the 6eneral Fund. Tire long.Term Liabililies includes an amounl estimaled by the external

,or"".fo" oiit'" u,ni.ipal1y as a contingenl liabitity or liabililies wilh a lixed or expected due date, which will require,uture

available linancial resources for ils paymenl.

P. USE OF ESTIIiIATES

The preparation ol the basic financial slatements in conlomily wilh accounting principles generally accepted in the uniled

states ol Ameica requires management lo make eslimates and assumplions lhal aflect lhe reported amounts ol assets and

tiafitities ana disclosures of contingent assels and liabilities al ihe date ol the basic linancial stalements and the leported

revenue and expenses duing the reporling peiod Actual resuh could ditfer lrom those estimales

O. ACCOUNTING FOR PEIISION COSTS

For the pupose of applying the requiremenls ol GASB Stalement N0.27, Accounting lot Pensions by State and Local

Aovenieni enpnyeipASe lo. Zi1, amendea ry GASB Statement No. 50, Persion D/bc/osu.es. The Municipality accounts

lor pension cos! Irom ihe standpoini ol a participant in a mulliple-employer cosl-siadng plan. Accordingly pension costs

recJgnized in ttre accompanying Lasic linancial statements are equal lo the slatutorily required conlribulions, with a liability

,"rot"Jfo, 
"ny 

,np.iO ,Lquirejcontributions. The state government of the Commonwealth oI Puedo Rico is considered to be

the sponsor of'the' Emptoyees' Fetirement System of th; Govemmenl of Puerto Bico and ils lnslrumentalities (ERS) and

Svstem 2000. a mu[i-empl;yer cost.sharing delined benelit pension plan and a hybrid defined contribution plan, respective]y, in

wi,ict tte erptoyees ot ihe futunicipahty p;rticipale. The Municipality is considered a participant and not a sponsor, ol these

i"ti"rrnt 
"Vif"i,t 

since tne malority oi ttre participants in the aloremenlioned pension trust ,unds ate employees oi the

Commonweallh of puerto Rico and th; basic linancia] $atements ol such retirement systems are part ol the linancial relorting

"ntity 
of tn" corron*""llh ol Pue o Rico. Accordingly, no portion ol the net pension obligalion (NPo) related to ERS has

Oeeri affocateO to the Municipality in the accompanying basic linancial statements. The basic financial statements ol the

C;mmonweallh of pue o Bic; reiort the total amount of the net pension obligation ol ERS, including any amounl lhal may

cofiespond to the MuniciPality.

The Municipality accounts lor pension costs lrom the slandpoinl of a panicipant in a mulliple-employel cost'shaing plan.

lccorOingly, pe'nsion costs rec;gnized in ihe accompanying basic tinancial staiements are equal to the slalutolily required

conkibulions, with a liabilily recolded lor any unpaid required conlibulions

R. RISK FINANCING

The Municipality carries commercial insurance to cover casualty, theft, tort claims and 
.other 

losses lnsulance policies are

nelo6ed iythe puerlo Rico Treasury Department and costs are al6caled among allthe Municipalhies ol Pueno Rico.

Cost ol insurance allocated to ihe l\,rtunicipality dudng the liscat year 2012-2013 amounied lo $393,374. FIom this amount,

$5,773 was deducted lrom the gross property tax colleclions by the Municipal Bevenue Colle-ction cenlel ("cRlM'). The curent

iniuran"" poticies have not bien canc; ed or ieminaled. The CRIM also deducted $326,078 lor wo*ers compensalion

insurance coveing all municipal employees.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE'l -SUMli,lABY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCoUiITING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

S. FUTURE ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued lhe lollowing accounting slandards that have etlective dales aller June 30, 2013:

.:. GASB Statement No . 61, The Financial Repoiing Entity: Onnibus- an anendnent ol GASB Statenents No 14 and No

34. This slalement is eflective for reponing periods beginning atter June 30, 2013;

* GASB Statemenl No. 64, Detivalive lnstrunents: Applicaton ol Hedge Accountng Termination Provisions (an anendnent

of GASB Slatenenl No. 53). This slatemenl is efleclive for leporting pedods beginning afler June 30,2013;

+ GASB Statement No. 69, Govenment Conbinations and Disposal ol Govemnent Opeations. This slatemenl is elleclive

lor repoding periods beginning afler December 15, 2013;

{. GASB Stalement No. 68, Accounting and Financiat Fepoting lor Pnsions - an Anendnent of GASB Slatatenl No. 27.

This statement is eflective lor fiscalyears beginning atler June 15,2014 Earliel application is encourage

The Municipality,s managemenl has concluded lhal the luture adoption ol these GASB Statements will nol have a signiticant

impact on the Authodly's basic linancial statemenh

NOTE 2- CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS

The lrunicipalily maintains its deposits in vaious commercial bank located in Puerto Rico and Govemmenl Development Bank

lor puedo hi;(GDB). proceeds from bonds and funds relaled to certain granl awards are required bylawlo be held wilh

GDB.

The Municipality adopled the provisions of GASB Slatement No. 40 (GASB No . 4O), Dewit and lnvestnent Risk Disclosure, an

Menaneit to AaSA $atinent l,k.3. This statement requires that state and local governments disclose essential isk

information about deposits and investments. The disclosure requirements cover four main areas: (1) credil risk, (2) interesl rate

risk, (3)custodial cledil risk, (4)loreign exchange exposure.

g!4!!UE! - This is the dsk that an issuer or other counteFarty to an inveslment willnotlufiill its obligations. ln compliance

ii-h re laws and regulalions ol the Commonwealth, the irunicipality has adopted, as ils cuslodial and credit dsk policy, the

Statenent of lnveshe cuidelines fu the Govennent ol lhe Comnonwealth ol Pueto Rico. l'Cf,o,dingly, lhe Municipality

inr"itr onfy , obligations ol lhe Commonwealth, obligations of the United Slates of America, certilicates ol deposits,

commerciaipaper, b'anke6' acceptances, or in pools ol abligations ollhe municipalilies of Puerto Rico, which are managed

UV OOg. A.iordini to lh" alorementioned inveslmenl guidelines,lhe Municipality does not invesl in ma*eiable secudties or

iiy \,pes ol inr""iments tor which credit risk exposuie may be signilicant. Therelore, lhe Municipalily's management has

coi"ii,iua itrat rn" fsi refaled to any possible loss related lo deiaults by commercial banks on the Municipality's deposits is

considered low at June 30, 2013.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 2- CASH AND CASH EOUIVALENTS (CONTII'IUED)

lnterest rate risk - This is the dsk that changes in interesl rates oldebl investmenls wtlladvercely atlect lhe tairvalue ol an

i;;;;-enffre [,lunicipality manages ib e;posure to declines in lak values by:.(l) nol including debl investments in ils

inreii.ent po,rtotio at irne 30, 20i3, (2) limiting the weighted average maturity ot its investments lo lhree monlhs oI less,

"riiil-r,""irg 
;*r.f its oant aepoiits in intirests beiring accounts generating interests at prevailing ma*et rates. .At

.tune io, zotzifie tvunicipalily,s investments in certilicates ol deposits are recoded at cosl, which approximates lheir lair

value. Tierelore, the Municipaiity,s management has concluded that al June 30, 2013, the inlerest rate isk associated with

the Municipality's cash and cash equivalents is considered low

q!S@ jglgCC!!-dg! - ln lhe case ol deposits,lhis is the risk lhai in the evenl ol a bank lailule, the Municipalily's deposits

mai""t be AoW"d pursuant lo $e Shbmen t ol lnves7nent Guidelines fot the Govennenl of the Connonwealth of

irJ,t R- tn" mt"n."" deposited in commercial banks by the Municipality are insured by lhe Federal Deposil lnsurance

iorporation (fOtC) generally up to a maximum ol g250,000 per depositor. ln addilion, public fun6 deposited in commercial

Oanls ly tnd Uuni'cipafiry are lully securities pledged as collateral are held, in lhe Municipality's name, by the agents oI the

commoi*eaftnt SJ.retiry of Tr;asury. Depbsitiwith GDB are uninsured and uncollateralized. However, no losses lelaled

to;efaults by GDB on deposit transaciions have been incurred by the Municipality thrcugh June 30, 2013 Thelelore, the

Municipatity'i management has concluded lhal at June 30, 2013 the cuslodial credit dsk associated with the Municipalily's

cash and cash equivalenls is considered lot'v

Foreiqn exchanqe risk - The dsk that changes in exchange rates will adversely atfect lhe value ol an investmeni or a

Gpoii-. l*"roing to the alorementioned inv;stment guideiines, the Municipality is prevented trom invesling in foreign

securities or any-olher types ol investmenls in which loreign exchange dsk exqosuq may be signilicanl. Accordingly,

manageme h; concluded hal the toreign exchange risk relaled to lhe Municipality's deposits is considered low al June

30, 2013.

The Municipality,s bank balances in commerciat banks ol $5,614,171 in lhe General Fund, $1,118 in the Head slai Fund and

$3,434,268 in dlher Govemmenlal Funds, were fully collaleralized al June 30, 2013' Th€ deposits at GDB of $4,415,315 in the

OJU Service fund and $3,5ffi,157 in lhe Loans Fund are unsecured and uncolialeralized, as no collateral is requked to be

caflied by govemmenlal banks.
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COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUEBTo RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEiIENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 3 - RECEIVABLES

A. SALES AND USE TAXES RECEIVABLES

AsdescribedbelowinNotel5,rheMunicipalLegislatureapprovedtheimpositionoflhemunicipalsalesandusetaxduing
iirJ,."iiOOO zooz. lndividuals, organiiationi and enlilies subiecl to collecl the municipalsales and use tax must lile a

i.,,"iu. r" it" Ll*i.pality. Tax is-due each 2or day ol eactr monlh based on tax collected in the preceding monlh.

ft.r"frt , i"i", t., 
"i"iva'ble 

ol $68,893 and $149,470 in the Debt Seryice Fund and in othel Governmental Funds'

respeclively, represents lhe amounts due by lhe laxpaye6 atJune 30,2013'

B. PROPERTY TAXES BECEIVABLES

Prooedy taxes receivable amounting to $179,180 in the General Fund represenls lhe linal liquidation of the ploperty taxes

"ii[. 
fil.J 1,"riiOiZ-iots, not coiiected uyihe Municipality at June 30, 2013. Property taxes receivable in the amounl ol

$23,504 in t'he oebt service Fund represenls advances lrom liscalyear 2012-2013, nol collected by lhe Municipality at

June 30,2013.

C. INTERGOVERNMENTALRECEIVABLES

stale govemmenl receivable in the other govemmental ,unds represents expenditures incu ed, nol yet reimbuEed by lhe

stab rgencies. Following is a delailofthe slate govemment receivabler

Siate Department o1 Labor. Law 52 $291J14

D. FEDEBAL GRANTS RECEIVABLE

Federal grants receivable in the governmental lunds reprssenl expendilures incurred, not yet leimbursed by the lederal

agencieiorthe pass{hrough grantors. Following is a detailoflhe federalgrants receivable:

Proqram Desc plion Amount

Head Sla
Public & lndian Housing

Community Developmenl Block Grant

Child Care & Development Block Granl

Child & Adull Care Food Program

Others

Tolal

$ 13,631

8,845
15,199

44,417

81,656

224

$163.972

E. OTHERS ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

At June 30, 2013, the Municipality mainlained in lhe Genelal Fund

addilion, the Head Starl Fund and the Olher Gove'mmental Funds

and $6,1 1 6 respeclively.

olher miscellaneous receivables amounting to $2,327. ln

mainlained miscellaneous receivables amounting to $808
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 4. OUE FROII / TO OTHER FUNDS

lnterfund receivables and payables at June 30, 2013 ale summarized as follows:

General Fund

GeneralFund

Total

$449,202

132.937

$llaEg

Olher Govemmental
Funds

olher Governmenlal

Funds

Payrolland relaled accruals Paid
and nol leimbuGed

Operating loans and operational

costs paid and nol reimbu6ed

NOTE 5- CAPITAL ASSETS

A summary ol capilalassels and changes occurfing in 2013 for the l\4unicipalily was as follows:

Balanct
July 1,20'12 Relirements/

Addilions Reclassifications

Balance

Govemmental Activities

Capital assel, not being deplecialed:

Land

Construction in plogless

Total capital assets nol being depreciated

Capital assels, being deprecialed:

Buildings and building improvements

Funiturc and {ixtures

Vehicles and equipmenl

lnlmstruclute

Tolal capital assets being dePreciated

Less accumulated deplecialion Ior
Buildings and building improvemenls

Furniture and lixtures

Vehicles and equipmenl

lnfrasiructurc

Total accumulaled deprcciation

Total capital a$ets treing dePrecialed, net

Governmenlal activilies capital assels, net

June30.2013as

$ 5,737,776
8.104.515

13.U2.291

38,7n,207
2,880,437
6,606,694

13.896.438

62.160.776

(9,461,202)
(2,343,527)

(s,7r3,333)
(1,607.6501

(19.126.012)

€.034.764

$_50.!27.055

$ 334,000
7,677.771

8.011.r/1

12,742,321
324,443
401,161

1.198.054

14.665.979

\1,287,9721
(281,398)

(359,912)
(301.890)

12.231.1721

12.434.807

t_20,446121

$
(12.654.856)

{12.654.856)

s 6,071,r/6
3.127.430

51,519,528
3,204,880
7,007,855

15.094.492

76.826,755

(1 0,749,1 74)

\2,625,225)
(6,073,245)

11.909.540)

(21.357.184)

55.469.571

$[2^654J501 t 6460!J11

ROMAN TORO &CO.
PO BOX 3043 yAUCO PR

CSP Ce ilied Public Accountants and Business Cottsuka ts

0(t698 jO43 . TEL. (787) 856-6220 FAx: (787) 856'623i

39



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BAslc FINANCIAL sTATE{t'tENTs (CoNTINUED)

NOTE 5 -CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expenses were charged lo governmentallunclions/programs as lollows:

Governmental activities Amounl

$ 111,493

70,490
575,546

1,015,250

2,678
455.715

$2,?l1,l12

General Government

Public Salety
Public Works

Cullure
Recreation

Heallh and Wellare

Total depreciation expenses

A summary ol capital assets and changes occu ng in 201 3 for Villa Soigal Project was as lollows:

Business-lype Activities

Retkemenls / Balance
Beclassilications June30,2013

Balance
July 1,2012 Additions

Caprtal asset, not being deplecrated:

Land

Tolal capilal asseis not b€ing depleciated

capital assets, being deprecialed:

Land improvements

Building and building improvemenls

Building equipmenl

Funilure and fixtures

Equipmenl

Total capital arsets being depreciated

Less accumulated deprecialion lor
Land improvements

Bu lding and buildlng imProvements

Building equipment

Furniture and lixtures

Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital asseb being dePreciated, net

Governmenlal activiti* capital assets, net

2$,72;
218,976

$ 58.350

58.350

739,624

3,655,370
512,248
33,584
12.703

4.953.529

(560,882)

(2,906,039)

i(232,126)
(32,983)
(11.9751

(3.744.0051

1.209.524

Ll?61!Zl

245.698

(18,491)
(96,270)

0s,062)
(256)
(561)

i134.6401

111.058

s xl!58

$ 58.350

739,624

3,682,092
731,224

33,584
12.703

5.199.227

(579,373)
(3,002,309)

(251,188)
(3s,239)

02.5361

- r3 878 645)

. 1320_582

$ 1328 932

4!
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COMIiIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNTCIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE SASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 6 -ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCBUED LIABILITIES

accorlnls Davable and accrued liabilities tn qovemmenlal lund linancial slatemenis represenl expendilures inculred during liscal

ffi;ijir:rdil;;il;]o-ovjrre'nrrnicilaritv at.rune 30, 2013. Following is a delail ol these accounts pavable and accrued

liabilities by maior fund:

Accrued
Liabilities

Accounls

General Fund

Head Slarl Fund

Loans Fund

Other Governmental Funds

Total

NOTE 7 - BONDS AND I'IOTES PAYABLE

As described in Note 10, lhe L4unicipalily issues general and special obligalion bonds and notes, pdncipally' to provide lunds for

in" ..qririti", .ro.r.i,uction ol maioi capitat iacilities, to pay debt incu(ed in prior years, and to cover the expenditures ol a

soecial event. Ai June 30, 2013, lhe governmenl-wide and lund linancial statemenls presenled lhe following accounls payable,

regading to lhe outstanding balance ollhese bonds and notes:

$ 260,017
15,557

405,871

635,475

$1110820

$73,824

u3.82t

$ 333,841

15,557

405,871

635.475

s1t903u

Description Amounl

Principal

Accrued inlercsls

Total

$ 1,295,000

493,663

$1J88603

NOTEE- DUETO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS

As of June 30, 2013, balance due to olher govemmenlal units consists of the following:

Governmenial Agency Amounl

General Sewice Administration

Puerto Bico Waler and Sewer Authority

State lnsuance Fund Corporaiion

Retirement System Administlalion

Puedo Fico Department ol Treasury

Puedo Rico Department ol Labor

lnlemal Revenue Service

Total

$ 2,514
79,896
2,718

63,707
5,U4
2,379

50.107

$207J65
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COIiIMONWEALTH OF PUEHTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 9- DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

A. Property lares - Unavailable revenues Ielated to property taxes amounting to $179 180.1n lhe Genercl Fund represents
'' 

irr. fi..iliqrorir^ .r the property taxes ol the tiscal ye;r 2612-2013. not collected by lhe lvlunicipaliiy at June 30 2013

B. Renl, licenses and permits- Unavailable revenues amounling lo $189,911 in the General Fund represents lhe

ievenues related to the rent oll\,{unicipality's property lor lhe liscal ye 2o12-2013, nol collected at June 30' 2013'

c. lnterests, tines and penalties- unavailable revenues amounting to $219,799 in lhe General Fund represenls the- 
pr..rt,.. ipprno to the iaxpayers thal did not paid in a timely manner or did not paid the municipal license taxes. This

amounl has nol been collected atJune 30,2013

D'FedeElGranls-UnavailablerevenuespresentedintheolherGovernmentalFundsrepresentslheportionolfederal- 
gi*1, ;.rrJro, *hich qualifying expe;ditures have not been incurred. Defered inflows of resources lrom the lederal

govemment are as lollows:

Amount

Public Assislance Granls

Total

$ 152.803

E15e003

NOTE 
.IO - GENEFAL LONG.TERM DEBTS

Longlem liability activily,or lhe year ended on June 30, 2013, was as lollows:

Govemmental Activities

Beginning
Balance Borrowings

or Additions
Paymenls oI

Deductions

Ending
Balance

Due W'nhin

one Yeor

Bonds and Notes Payable

Property Tax Debt - Law 42

Prcperty Tax Debt - Law 1 46

Estimated landiill closure and
post-closure care cosl

Compensaled absences

Claims and Judgments
Health lnsurance Administralion

tolal

$ 17,157,000

936,834
151,354

231,098
2,727,913
1,250,000

$22210.465

$ 4,610,000 $ (1.545,000)
(2s,663)

(7,568)

(16,267)

(1,2s0,000)

$ 20,222,000
913,171

143,786

214,831

2,781,191

256.266

$ 1,525,000
25,150

7,568

17,080

212,178-$,27;-

i_ 4,00327! $ On42,!198I $r4t3126 $ lJ!6J70
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COIi,|MONWEALTH 0F PUERTO FICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1() - GENERAL LONG.TEBII,I DEBTS (CONTINUED)

Business-tvpe Activities

Beginning
Balance

Borowings
or Additions

Payments or
oeductions

Ending
Balance

Due within
One Year

Descri

Business-lvpe Activities

Villa Solgal Proiect ]\,{orlgage

Total

$ 857.709

s 857.709

s (106.5691

$ lt!6t09)

s 751 140 s 112.909

L 7!!,140 lll2Jql

A. GENEBAL OBLIGATIONS BONDSAND I'IOTES PAYABLE

The Municipatity issues general and special obligation bonds and notes, principally, to provide lunds lor lhe acquisition and

"on.trJi". 
of h"p, ..p1al facililies, to pay debl incurred in pdot years, and lo cover lhe expenditures of a special event'

Bonds and noles payables as ol June 30, 2013, are comp sed ol the lollowing individual issues:

AMOUNTDESCRIPTION

$3,420,000, Series 1996,10r conslrucliofl purposes, payable in annual inslallments ranging fom

$zb,oob to $gts,ooo, excluding va able interest from 4.70% lo 6.58%, through January 1,2016

$1,010,000, Series 1996, for construction puPoses' payable in annual inslallmenls ranging lrom

$20,000 to $95,000, excluding variable interest lrom 4 70 to 6 58%' through January 1, 2015

$1 ,800,000, Se es 1 997, for conslruction purposes' payable in inslallments ranging lrom $20'000 10

$165,000, excluding vadable interest,rom 4.87% lo 6.567", through July 1, 2021

$1,510,000, Series 2001, iol conslruclion putposes, payable in annual inslallments ranging-lrom

$eil,oob lo $tss,oOO, excluding variable interesl from 2 707" to 5 60%, through July 1, 2026

$1,110,000, Series 2005, lor construction purposes, payable in annual installments ranging from

$56,00b to $105,000, excluding variable inlerest lrom 3.28% to 4.80%,lhtough January 1, 2019

$1,150,000, Series 2007, folconstruclion punoses' payable in annual inslallments ranging from

$2d,000 to $95,000, excluding variable interest flom 1.53"/" to 7 00%, through July 1, 2031

$485,000, Sedes 2007, lor consiruclion purPoses, payable in annual installm€nls ranginglrom

$3o,doo to $os,ooo, excluding vaiable inleresl irom 1 53% to 7.00%' through July 1, 2016

$967,000, Sedes 2008,lor conslruction punoses, payable in annual inslallments rangingirom

$8O,OO0 to $ 142,000, excluding valiable interest lrom 1 43% to 6 00%, through July 1, 2017

880,000

185,000

1,025,000

1,115,000

545,000

995,000

180,000

507,000
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1O -GENEBAL LONG.TEBM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENEBAL OSLIGATIONS BONDS AND NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUED)

AMOUNT
DESCRIPTION

$3,445,000, Se es 2008,lor construclion purposes, payable in annual installmenls rangin-g-from

$sb,OOb to $zgS,Ooo, .*rluding variable inleresl llom 1.53% lo 7.50%, through July 1, 2032

$660,000, Seies 2010, lor conslruction puposes, payable in annual installmenls ranging from

$75,000 to $120,000, excluding variable inlelest lrom 6.00% to 7 00%, through July 1, 2016

$990,000, Seies 2010,10r construclion puposes, payable in annual installments ranging lrom

$10,000 to $80,000, excluding variable inlelesl hom 6.00 to 7.00%, through July 1, 2034

$1,510,000, Seies 2010, lor conslruciion pumoses, payable in annual installments ranging.from

$Zb,oob to $tso,oOO, er.luding vadable interest from 6 00% lo 7.50%,lhlough July 1, 2034

$605,000, Series 2010, forconslruction puQoses, payable in annual inslallmenb ranging lrom

$5,Ooo to $50,000, excluding va able interesl from 6.00% io 7.50%, ihrough July 1 
' 
2034

$1,510,000, Series 2010, lor construction purposes, payable in annual insiallments rangin! lrom

$25,000 to $120,000, excluding vadable interest lrom 4.75% to 6.75%, through July 1, 2034

$2,770,000, Series 201 1 , lor conslruciion purposes, payable in annual installmenls rangin-g-from

$ob,oOO to $zss,OOO, 
"rcluding 

variable interesl trom 6 00%1o 7.50%' lhlough July 1 , 2030

$275,000, Series 2011, for operational puposes, payable in annual instatlmenls tanging ilom $30,000

to $50,000, excluding vadable interestlrom 6.00% to 7.00"/", through July 1,2017

$1,275,000, Sedes 2012,10I conslruction purposes, payable in annual installmenls rangingjrom

$t+o,ooO to $zzs,OOO, ercluding variable inleresl irom 6 00% to 7.50%,lhrough July 1, 2019

$2,075,000, Se es 201 2, tor conslruction puQoses, payable in annual inslallmenls nngin-g-lrom

$Sb,oob to $tso,OOO, er"luding vadable interest lrom 6 00% lo 7.50%' thlough July 1, 2032

$1,260,000, Sedes 2012, tor operational purposes, payable in annual inslallmenls ranging lrom

$tas,obo to $zzo,ooo, .rcluding variable interest lrom 6 00% to 7.50%, through July 1, 2019

Total General Obligations

These bonds and notes are payable wilh lhe tollowing Municipality's resources:

r.-ip*.r"Jrii** p.periy tax, which is restricted lor debl service and relained by the Govemment Devetopment Banklor

Puerto Fico for such puQoses;

* lt/tunicipal sales taxes resources reslricled for debl seryice, andi

a Opentionalresources.
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3,145,000

325,000

925,000

't,410,000

570,000

1,,100,000

2,565,000

175,000

1,r35,000

2,025,000

1.115.000

i-lo,@M
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COIi,TMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1O -GENERAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

A. GENERAL OBLIGATIOIIS BOIIDS At{D NOTES PAYABLE (CONTINUEo)

The annual requirements 1o amodize the general obligations bonds oulstanding as ol June 30,2013 are as lollows:

Yeat Ending Principal lnterest

June

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

2019-2023
2024-2028
2029.2033
2034-2038

Tolal

$ 1,525,000

1,650,000

1,690,000

1,277,000
1,155,000

4,210,000
4,305,000
4,030,000

380,000

s20J22J00

$ 1,140,383

1,189,910

1,093,303

1,002,814

957,681

3,782,746
2,453,931

883,614
27.200

$12131582

$ 2,665,383

2,839,9'10

2,78338
2,279,814
2,112,681

7,992,746
6,758,931

4,913,614
407.200

$32Jri.502

ThemorlgagepayablebytheBusiness.lypeActivitiesisowedbyVillasoigalProjeclandconsistsofaS%mortgagenote,
payabb i;;onihli installments of $13,203, including inleresl, until2019, collateralized with land and building'

Annual requiremenlslo malu ty ol the morlgage are as lollows:

Year Ending
June

2014
2015
2016
2017

2018

2019

Total

$112,909
120,471

128,539

137,148

146,333

105.740

$751tr0

$ 4s,515
37,953

29,885
21,276
12,091

2.672

$lrlg,iD2

$158,424
158,424
158,424
158,424
158,424
108.412

$100J32

Principal lnlerest

ROMAN TORO & CO.,
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COHMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

NOTE 1O -GENEBAL LONG.TERM DEBTS (CONTINUED)

B. PBOPERW TAX DEBTS . LAW 42

onJanuary26,2000,ActNo.42wasenactedloaulhorizetheCRIMtoentelinloafinancingagreementolupio$200million,
roi 

"1.i, 
i,"t ir.""iing s0 yea6. The linancing agreement allows lor the linancing of a debl that the municipalities ol Puerto

fioo n"* *iil ff,. Cnffu, arising lrom the finaiseilements ol property tax advances ve6us aclual collections through fiscal

vear 2000. The amounls that the municipalities will coltect lrom the additional property taxes resulling flom lhe increases in th€

lrt"ia, rr". rt" Cor."nwealth to the 
'municipalilies 

are assigned through this law to repay such loan. The increase in this

subsidi was lhe lesult olthe Public Law N0 238 olAugust 15, 1999.

ln addition, on February 12,2003, lhe Municipality entered inlo a repaymenl agreemenl wilh the Govemmenl Developmenl

e;ii;ipr",to ni.o IGOB) and the CR1M, to pay ofi the excess ol property lax advances through fiscal yeal 2000 and 2001.

itte CR[,t retuins ttre puyment from lhe property lax advances ol the Municipality. The amounts retained by the CRIM are

iemitteO to OOg on ,luly f'of each year lhrough July 1, 2032. The outstanding balance ol lhe note payable lo the CRll\,1 at June

30, 2013 amounled to $913,171.

C. PROPEBTY TAX DEBT. LAW 146

on seolember 24. 2002, the cRlM, on behall ollhe municipalities ol Puerto Rico, entered into a linancing agreement wilh GDB

-"rJJIolt" ,.ririo* ol Law No. 146 ol Oclober 11, 2001. The pupose ol this financing agreement was to extinguish in

lor-*, ,",ii. iona. p.yabte issued by the pubt6 Finance Co,oralion, a subsidiary ol lhe GDB, which were o ginally issued

t" p"v 
".,tii. 

p,.p.,tv i* receivables o;ned by lhe municipalities ol puerto Rico through 1996. The outstanding balance ol lhe

noie payable to the CRI[,] at June 30, 2013 amounted to $143,786

D. PROPERTY TAX DEBTS

The annual requilemenls to amorlize the ploperty tax debts (Law 42 and Law 146) oulstanding as ol June 30' 2013 are as

follows:

Year Ending Principal lnterest

June 30, Payment Paymenl Total

2014
2015
2016
2017
2018

2019-2023
2024-2028
2029-2033

Total

$ 32,717

u,297
35,977

37,762
39,659

231,197
300,072
345.276

st 050t5z

$ 65,063

63,012

60,862
58,606

56,238

241,228
160,586

$ 97,780
97,309
96,839

96,368
95,897

472,425
460,658

s5 412 400.688

$roLooz s1317J104
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 10 - GENERAL LONG-TERii| DEBTS (COIITINUED)

E. COMPENSATEDABSENCES

Theoovemment.widestalemenlolnelposilionincludes$2,TEl,lglolaccruedsickleavebenelits'andaccruedVacation
beneiils, represenling lhe l\,l unicipality s commilment lo lund such costs from lulute operalions'

F. STATE INSUEANCE HEALTH ADMINISTBATION

Liabililies of $256,266 repoded in lhe slatemenl ol net posilion represenl the balance owed lor sewices prcvided by the state

lnsurance Heallh Administration 10 lhe l!,lunicipalily and nol paid at June 30, 2013

NOTE 11 - LANDFILL CLOSURE AND POSTCLOSUBE CARE COST OBLIGATION

The Municipalily owns a municipal solid wasle landlill and adopted the required provisions ol statement No. 1g,'Accounting lor

iiiipit {iii wrol, l"ndtil bbsure and Post ctosure carebostsi issued by lhe Govemmental Accounting Standards Board

IGASEI No. 18) and the requtatons set forth by the u.s. Environmenlal protection Agency (EpA) in its'solid wasle Disposal

i".,mv C,1*i issued on- oclober 9, 1991. Stale and lederal laws and regulations require the lrunicipality lo place a linal

,or"i'on is r.nOirr .ir. *hen closed and perlom certain maintenance and monitoring lunctions at the landfill site lot 30 years

"n.i 
,iorri". lrrhorgt closure and post closure care costs wi1 be paid only near or atter the date that the landfill stops

accepiing wase, tne"uunicipality repods a podion ol these closute and post closure care cosls as an operating expense in

."rr,'p"iol oiria on r..dfiil capaciiy used as ol each statement of nel posilion date. The Municipality disconlinued its landlill

.pri.ir., ".J.ri*a 
r. accepi solid waste in January 1993. post ctosure care procedures were assumed by the Municipality

and lhe closure process was completed in January 17, 1997.

The tolal eslimated liability lor posl closure care cosls has been delemined in $214,831 as ol June 30, 201 3'

NOTE 12 - DEBT RETIREMENT

Fevenues ol the Debt service Fund consisl ol lhe ad-valorem propedy tales which are rccognized as revenue when collected

i;;;rp.6 and reported by the Municipal Revenue coltection cenler ol the commonwealh ol puerto Rico lo the

Municipalily.

These property taxes are accumulated by the Municipal Revenue collection center in costs ol the general obligations boJds

is;;d'bv ihe l\,lunicipalily. Pavments are made lo lhe Government Developmenl Bank ol lhe commonwealth ol Puerlo Bico

lrom sucir accumulated lunds by the l\.rtunicipal Revenue Colleclion Centerol Pueno Rico'

NOTE,I3- PROPERTY TAXES

The lvlunicipal Revenue collection cenler oi the commonwealth ol Puerto Flico is responsible tor the assessmenl ol all realand

p"i"J."i pl"p",tv r*.t"d within the Municipatity and tor the tevy, adminislration and colteclion ol the coffesponding lax

conl bution.

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Ce ified Public Atcountans and Dusiness Consuhants
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

II,TUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC Fll,lANClAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 13 - PROPERTY TAXES (CONTINUED)

Thepropertytaxcontdbdionisleviedeachyearoverlheappraisedvalueoltheprop€ryatlhebeginningofthecalendaryear.
rii" i."[pr,ip.,tv 

".i...renl 
is based on l'he current value existing in the year 1957 and the perconal property al lhe cu(ent

value atlhe dale ol lhe assessmenl

The tax rate per annum is 9.08% lor real property and 5 83% lol perconal property ol.which 1 03% ol both belong to lhe

commonwealih ol puerto Rico and 8.05% and 4.81i%, respectively, belongs to the Municipality. From the portion belonging lo

lh; M;ip.l,ty 6.00% and 3.00%, respectively, rcpresents the Municipality's basic tax rale that is approprialed lor gefleral

purposes and therelore accounted lol through the GeneralFund

The remaining portions 2.25% lor real propefiy and 2.00% lor peEonal propeny replesents lhe ad-valorem property taxes

*lifrf,io f}/ tf,i irfunicipa nevenue collection c;nter ol the commonwealth ol Puerto Bico and reslricted loI debt service, which

is account6d forthrough lhe Debt Service Fund (See Note 8). The Municipality hasnol reached the maximum stalulqry tax 13le

limitlor lhe basic tax while lhere is no limitalion lorthe ad'valorem lax rale.

The commonweallh ol Puerto Rico grants complele [eal prope{y tax exoneralion on lhe lirst $15,000 assessed valuation on

iesiaentiat unit" occupi"a by heir ow;ers. However, the Municipality receives lhe lull amount levied, except for residential units

assessed al less lhan $3,560 on which a complete exemplion is granted. The l\,lunicipal Revenue Collection Center, instead ol

the property laxpayer, becomes lhe soulce of paymenl in these cases

The Municipality grants a complete exemption lrom personal propedy laxes up to an assessmenl value ol $50,000 to retaile|,S

*iffr in inrirat iei 
"ates 

volume ol less lhan $1 50,000 The Municipal Bevenue Colleclion Center advances to lhe M unicipality'

on monttrty payments, 100% ol the contribution assessed over property lor each tiscal year. ln accordance to Law, lhese

.Jr"n..i iriii u'" .nriiurtions by ihe irunicipal Revenue collection center from laxpayers. The Municipal Bevenue collection

cenler periodically inloms to the Municipality the amounts collected lrom tarpayeE and applied to outslanding advances

The Municipality records as revenue in the general fund the propefy lax conldbution when received lrom monlhly advances

from Municipal Revenue Collection Center.

Due to the lacl that colleclions of property tax are applied to the advances ol property tax paid by lhe Municipal Revenue

Collection Center. the amonization ;l the advance at end ol year was nol available due lo lhat is in process ol verilicaiion by

exlemal auditors.

I.IOTE 14-MUNICIPAL LICENSE TAXES

The municipal license tax is levied each year based on the prior yeais gross revenues for all commercial and industrial

oroanizations doino business in the l\,rtunicipality and which are not lolally or parlially exempl lrom this lax under lhe lndustrial

r"J"rir", l*..it. c.mmonwealth ol iueio Bico. A[ taxpaye* are required to lite their declarations by Apil 23 oleach

year. The tax rates are as lollows:

* 1.50% lor linancial inslitutions
.:. 1 .oo% lot savings and loan associalions.

l. 0.50% lor other orqanizations over $5(n,000.

* 0.40% lor olher organizalions up lo $500,000

ROMAN TORO & CO., CSP Cenilied Pubtic Accountants and Business Cons hants
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COMIi,IONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 14 - UNICIPAL LICENSE TAXES (CONTINUED)

Taxesarepayableintwoequalsemi.annualinstallmentsonJulylandJanuarylfollowinglhedateojlevy'lllheyarepaidwilh
i*[-"JiJ,riii.l*piv"i iilanted a 5z of discount. collections oi laxes dudng currenl liscal year, applicable to the nexl liscal

year, ale lecorded as unearned revenues in the General Fund

NOTE 15- SALES AND USE TAXES

On July 4,2006, lhe Legislature ol lhe Commonweallh ol Pueio Hico approved Act No' 117 ('Acl 11/) which amends the

puerlo'Hio lntemat Re;nue Code ol 1994 to provide lor a sales and use tax of 5.5% to be imposed by the Commonweallh

Govemmenl. Act 1 1 7 also authodzes each municipalty governmenl lo impose a municipal sales and use lax ol 1 .5%. This

,rn[ipat sat". ano us" rax has in general lhe same lax base and limitalions (except lor unprocessed foods) as those provided

by the Commonweallh's sales and uselax

Seclion 61g9 ol the puerto Rico lniernal Fevenue Code ol 1994, as amended, autholizes the Municipalities in Pue o Bico lo

irp*r i r"i*t ,no *" rax lo consume6. This tax musl be imposed in conlormity wilh the base, exemplions and limilalions

contained Sublifle BB ol the C,ode. The l\,lunicipal Sales Tax is specilically imposed overall sales transactions ol taxable items

"nl'.orOirra 
t"*".fions (as defined by the municipal internal regulation) laken place within municipal limits. The lllunicipal

iai is itso speciticatry impded overlhe iurchase pdce for the use, storage oI consumption ol laxable transactions (as delined

bylhe municipal inlemal regulation) taken placewithin municipal limits.

The Municipat Legislature approved the imposition of the municipalsales and use tax dudng fiscal ye 2006'200-7. lndividuals,

oroanizatio;s and-enlities subiect to collect the municipal sales and use lax musl lile a tax relum 10 the Municipalily. Tax is due

e"""t ZO* Oay ot eact ,onth based on tax collected in lhe preceding monlh. Resources are recorded in the Genelal Fund

Also, on July29,2007, the Governor ol Puerto Bico signed into Law an amendment ol Act No 117, H 8 2193 known as Act

No. 60. Th; most signiticanl amendmenls were: lirst, lo unilom the tax rate at 7% ol which the municipalities will collecl 1%

,nO if,. pr.rto Ricoireasury Depadmenl the olher 6%, 0.51% ol the 6% belongs to the municipality and it is distribuled

G,orgt tt,". t.p.ta. trnds: Municipal Developmenl Fund, Municipal Redemption Fund and Municipal lmprovements Fund;

,*o,iaiv tf,r .riilfirf,r"nt of a Locai Commercial Rule and the eliminalion of source and nexus rules to impose the sale and

u"eiax.'ft ese runos a," aoministered by the covemment Developmenl Bank lor Puerlo Rico. Finally, the Law resl cts the use

ol the lunds by the municipalities to cedain specific aciivities.

Puerto Bico Law 40 ol 2013, as amended, will reduce the tolal municipal sales and use lax lo 1% (from the previous total 1.5%)

efleclive February 1, 2014, which would eliminate the 0.5% collecled by ihe PR Treasury'

NOTE 16- INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES

lntergovernmental revenues consisl primadly ol funds received hom the commonwealth ol Puerto Bico, 'in lieu o1 lax'

pi,,i"rr, f., ir,. Or*i-public Corporation; Puerlo Rico Elecl1c Power Authoily, and tederal linancial assistance received

lrom federal government.

Grants and subsidies received lrom the Commonwealth ol Pueno Rico and federal agencies include, among othels, a general

*l"ia}/ r, ,rt* aaurr"pment and capital improvements. lntergovemmenlal Ievenues are.accounled for through the General

iirJlr*pi t, t*" ai"ctly related io uban development and capital im$ovements, which are accounted lor through the

ipecain"'renue ana tle Caphal project Funds. Federal Financial Assislance is recorded in the Special Revenue Fund.
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PO Box 3043 YAUCO PR 006s8'j043 TEL. (787) 856'6220 FAx: (787) 856'6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FIi'IANCIAL STATEIi'IENTS (COi'ITINUED)

i.IOTE,I? - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

lnterfund transleN during the liscal year ended at June 30, 2013, are summaiized as lollows:

Geneal Fund

oebt Seryice Fund

Debt Seruice Fund

General Fund

oebt retiremenl

To cover operational

expenditure

To cover operalional

expendilure

$ 314,563

2,006

L116,!t91

Other Govemmenlal

Fund Debt Service Fund

Total

NOTE 18- EMPLOYEE'S BETIREI EI'IT PLA}I

The Employee's Retiremenl Syslem ol the Govemmenl ol Puerto Rico and its instrumentality (EBS) is the adminislEior oI a

.ort-rir,i,in6 ,rfrpft".ployei retirement system eslablished by lhe commonweallh oI Puerto Rico The EBs was created

,"aliirqi" noo Lr* al7,'approved on Miy 15' 1951, as amended, and became eflective on January 1' 1952 ERScoversall

i.grl.i ,;,pl.V"; ; th" 6ommonweatth oi puerto Rico, its instrumentalilies, and municipalities and componenls unils noi

covered by their own reliremenl syslems.

padiciDation is mandatorv lor oovernmental and municipat employees, except lol members of the Legislalure, Government

i"i',i''!"i-r niiJ"i fuJnri".'inJ puuri, tnstrumentality. lssistints ol lhe Govemor, lhe comptroller ol lhe Puedo Rico

d;.-;;tri"t goara aria Committee appointees and Eiperimentat Seruice Starion employees. Temporary and tlanslt,gry

emotovees are excluded lrom participaion in lhe System. EBS provides retilemenl. dealh and disability benelils. Disability

i"ii'-1";iJiim,i'"iii-J" 
"*ir.ir'"lo 

,irru." ro, ociupationat and non-occupalional disabililies Belilemenl benelits depend

,p.. 
"d 

ri"ii,;r"rt 
"nd 

number ol yeals of credited seruice, and their hiring date. Benelits vesl alter ten years ol plan

participation.

The Municipality adopled the requiremenls ol GASBS No 25 ior all lhe career employees that are covered under the

iorron*.'"frh'of puerto Hico imployee's Retirement System, a multiple-employer public employee relirement system,

established by Stale Laws.

Law Number 305 of september 24, 1999, amended Puerto Rico Law Number 447, eslablishing a savings program called

'i"ii"rrni svtr", zoob". All employees active in the syslem as ol December 31' 1999 may have elected lo lransler lrom

i"fint 
"onfriO,ition 

prgtums lo the ne; savings program (a delined conlribulion plan) Employees in lhe savings program may

trave contribute from iminimum of e.275% up io imaximum ot 10"/" ol their monthly salary, and will invested in an accounl

*f,iJ *iff"irf,.,, l") "r. .lixed rate based o; the two'yeal conslanl Maluily Treasury Nole oI' (b) eam a rate equalto 757" ol

;;;;;;ifi"'sirte;,a investment podtotio (net ot ;anagement tees), or (c) eam a combination ot both allematives. ll at

ii." oir.tii"..nt ir.rrrlaled benefit; amounito $10,000 ;r less may have elecled lo receive a lump sum dist bulion up lo

the accumulaled benefits. Underthe new program lhe retirement age iireduced lrom 65 to 60 for those employees who joined

the curent plan on or after Ap l 1, 1990

R1MAN TOR} & CO. CSP Ceftified Public Accounllnts a Business Cons hants

PO ROx i043 YAUCO PR 00698 3A3 - TEL. ( 787 ) 856'6220 FAx: (787)856'6233

50



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 18. EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

puerto Rico Law Number 3 ol April 4, 2013 created a new hyb d system incorpolalng elemenls ol delined benefil and delined

cont bution plans. As of July 1 , 201 3, every employee who i; a padicipant ol the E RS who had not retired as ol June 30, 201 3,

and anv new oarticioant wh; ioins aner that dale, siall become pa( ol the Defined Conlribution Hybdd Program As per Puerto

nir.li" lrriru",i ,r zots, new povisions sha appty to emptoyees who padhipate in the system that (1) began lo work

l.ii"l"."",v r, zooo rz)a; ofJune30,2013, are not participants olthe Retirement savings Account program established in

6;ff 4 ;iL; Nrr#i!, and (3) as of June 30, 2013, do n;t meet lhe requirements of years of seryice and age to retire that

ii. Irqri,.o , c6.pr" z oi Law l.iumber 3, or having met such requirements did nol elecl to retire before July 1, 2013. The

sarin$ iccounfs uia", ttre Retirement System 20OO , employees who joined lhe System lor the first time on or after January

i, iOdO, stratt le rotteO over 10 the Defined Contibution Hybrid Program. Additionally, lhose who could letire on or belore June

Sb, i6ib because tney are 60 yea6 old, may retire on any later dal;, and they shall be entitled to receive ihe annuity that could

U"'rrqrirrl ;ith tt" 6"f.n.r 6l th" .ontribuiionlnder tire Retiremenl Savings Account Program which are transferred 1o the

Delined Conldbution Hybrid Program.

[Jndellheplans,theemployeesandemployelporlionsarecontlibuled,folwhich,lheemployeeamout]tiswithheldfrom
.ri",i"r. ffir irif,rity *fe; which the lunding policy and the obligations to conl bule to the ERS and System 2000 by the

il;;' ;"|5;;, 
".itoyers 

una other conti6uiing enlities (state ot municipat cont bulons), are established or may be

amended by law:

. up to June 30, 2013, covered employees were required by commonwealth stalute to contibute 5.7757" lor the first

$sSO ol montfrty satary ptus 8.275i" lor lhe excess ol lhis amount, or on lhe altemative, 8 275% oi allsalary'

.AtterJune30,2ol3,everyparlicipantotlheHybdProglamshallcompulsodlyhavetocontdbutel0%olhis/her
salary while he/she is an employee. The participants oi the Hybrid may volunlaily conlibute lo their accounl an

amoJ in addition to the one esiablished irere. ihese coniribulions shall be credited to the contdbulion account of

eac.rrparticipantorlneHvtddPlogram.Employeeswhocontdbutelotheretiremenlsysteminaspecialplanwiththe
ERS in coordinaiion withiheir coniributrons io Social Security, as defined by lhe EBS adminislrator, will be lequired to

*nitibrt. zy" of thtit .onthly salaries up lo $550 for FY 2014, to be increased to 8 5% lor FY 2015' and linally 10%

lor FY 2016 and allluture Peiods.

.TheMunicipalitycontribuledlothesystem9'275%olthepadicipalingemployee,ssalalieslortheliscalyearendedin
June SO, ZtitO ind prior years. Puerio Rico Law 116 of July 6, 2011 increased lhe employer conlibution late required

trom tne uunicipatitl. Tri conlribulion rale increasedlrcng.27l" to 20.775"k, to be implemented in incremenlal-1o/"

to 1.25% annu;l inireased between those years. The same law provided lhat lol liscal years 2012' 2013' and 2014'

thePuertoRicoofliceoll\4anagementandBudgelwouldcontdbutelheseincreasesforalll\,|unicipalities.slading-in
ii""ur v"ii zor+-zors, rne lrun;ipalitv is requir;d to conlibute 12]?J5'1o 

9! 
j!9 .ejdlcreating 

emplovees salaries ior

that p;dod, and the rate wilt increase io 13.2i5% rn Fy 2016, 14.525"/" in FY 2017, $.ns%inFY 2018,17.025'/. i1

Fy i01g,18.275%i(\Fv 2020, and finally to 19 525% in FY 2021 and all lulure peiods'

Belore Julv 1. 2013, all employees lhat did not elect to lransler lor the system 2000 savings program and who at the time.ol

;;;;y#t ffi a;t.;rs'otd or tess were etigibte lo participate in the delined contibution syslem, wilh pension benefils lor

participants as lollows:
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEARS OF

SERVICE

30 or more

30 or more

30 or more

Less than 30,

more than '10

PARTICIPANT'S
AGE

55 or less

58 or more

65 0r more

N/A

PENSION BENEFITS

65"/" ollhe avelage olthe lhree years ol highest salary during the

employee's service Period.

75% ollhe avelage oi the lhree years ol highest salary dudng the

employee's seruice period (employees hired before Apil 1, 1990).

75% ol the average of lhe three years of highest salary du ng the

employee's service period (employees hired atler Ap l 1 , 1 990)

1.5% ol their average compensalion lor each year ol credit service lor

the remaining yeaE.

Aiter July j, 2013, both the detined contribution and System 20oo Savings syslems vill be converled lo the new Hybrid Defined

contdbuiio; syst;m. The lollowing the changes implemented by puerto Bico Law 3 ol 2013, all employees lhat elecl to relire,

- retaiatess ot tie previous retirem-ent syste;they participated rn, will be enlitled to retire and leceive their benelits under the

following condilions;

- NOTE 18- EIi'IPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

PFEVIOUS
RETIREMENT

PBOGBAM

Savings Syslem

('System 2000')

Savings System

('Syslem 2000")

Savings System

('Syslem 2000')

Delined Beneiil

Program (employed

belore Ap ll,1990).

Defined Benefil

Program (hired alter

April 1, 1990 but before

January 1, 2000).

All other employees nol

covered above.

YEARS OF

SERVICE

N/A

rvA

N/A

25 or 10 years

ol more,

respectively

10 yeaB

PABTICIPANT'S
AGE. AS OF

JUNE 30.2013

60 yeals or more

55 lo 59 yea6

55

54 or 57 years or

less, respeclively

ELIGIBLE AGE TO RETIRE

May rethe at any time in lhe fulure atler June 30,2013.

May retire once paiicipanl meets lhe predelemined

age ol 61 to 65 years of age, respeclively.

l\,lay relire al anylime in the lulule afterJune 30,2013,

but onlylor public otlicers in high-risk positions

l\,,tay retire once participanl meets the predelermined

age ol59lo 61 yeals ol age and 10 yeats olservice.

64 yeals or less

10 yeals 65 years or more

May relire once participanl meets the predelemined

age ol65 yeaE of age.

May relire al anylime in the lulu[e alterJune 30,2013

ROMAN TORO & CO. CSP Cenirted Pubtic Accou tahts nd Business ConsuLtants

po soi so.ts vtuco pn cnagg sus rEL (787) 856 6220 FAX: (787)856 6233
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COMIIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAT,I

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIiIENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 18- EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

public Otlicers in High-Hisk Posilions may volunlarily opl to retire after reaching lhe age ol 55 and 30 years ol service.

Relirement shall be mandalory on lhe date lhe parlicipant reaches both 30 years ol seNice and the age ol 58. Relircmenl shall

be optional lor the memberc & the System in active service, on and after the date they have attained the age of 55 years and

have compleled at least 25 yearc of creditable seruice; and lor memberc ol lhe system who having reached lhe age of 58

years, and have compteted at least 10 yeals ol credilable service. The memberc ol lhe Police shall also have lhe option ol a

;etirement annuity on and after the date on which they have attained the age ol50 yeac and have completed at leasl 25 yeals

of creditable service. Any participant whose separation lrom the seNice occurs pdol to having attained the age of 58 years,

who shall have compleGd al leasl i0 years ol creditable service, and who shall have nol applied for, nor received

reimbuGement o, accumulaled contibutions shall be enlitled to receive a deferred relirement annuity. Said participants shall

receive a defe(ed relirement annuity which shall commence upon atlaining the age of 58 years or attel attaining the age ol 50

years in lhe case ol policemen ot firemen, and 55 yeals in lhe case o{ lhe other parlicipanls, il lhey have completed al least 25

years ol seryice in one case ol lhe olher.

For employees who were hircd before Ap l 1, 1990, the amount of the annuity shall be one and 1.507o ol the average

compensalion mulliplied by the number of years oi creditable service up to 20 yeals, plus 2% ot the average compensation

muttiplied by the number o, yeals ol creditabte service in excess of 20 yearc up to June 30, 2013. For employees hired attel

April l, 19d0, the amount ol the annuity shall be 1.5% ol lhe average compensation multiplied by the years o{ accrediled

services up to June 30, 2013. From July 1,2013 onward6, participants in the retkement system willnol accumulate new yeaB

ol seryice nor receive accreditation lor prcviously unrecognized service yeals, lransler conlribulions, oI relum coniibutions for

pedods endhg on or belore June 30, 2013.

However, a minimum pension of $500 per monih, etlective July 1,2013, is hereby fixed lorthose participants who retiled in lrom

lhe retiremenl system;. Every pensioner who receives pension of less lhan $500 per month shall receive, efreclive July 1, 2013,

the increase requirelor his/her pension lo be $500.

A variety ol signilicant actuarial assumptions are used to determine lhe standard measure ol lhe pension benefit obligalion and

lhese assumptions are summaized below:

.1. The presenl value ol the luture pension payments was compuled by using a discount of 9%

* Fulule pension pa!'menls reflect an assumption of a 67o salary increase

The amount ol the total pension benelil obligation is based on a standardized measurement eslablished by GASBS No. 27'

Financial Repoting lor delined Benelit Pension Plans and Notes Disctosure fot Defined Conttibulbns Plans. Tlle standardized

measurement is lhi actuarial present value of estimated defined pension benelits, adjusted lor the etlecls ol projected salary

increases and step-rale benelis, eslimated to be payable in the future as a tesull of employee seryices pedormed lo date. The

measure is intended to help users assess lhe SysGm's lunding status on a going{on@rn basis, assess progrcss made in

accumulating sullicient ass;s to pay benefils when due, and make compalisons among other public retiremenl sysiems. The

measure is i;dependent oflhe aclua allunding melhod used to detemine contdbutions to the plan'

contfbutions in 2013 and pior years were made based on percenlages established by the law. such percentage has not been

based on acluaiat studiei, as required by accounling principles generally accepted in lhe United States ol Amedca An

actuadal compilation ol the annual contibulion applicable to lhe Municipality has not been prepared. Accordingly, the accounls

bywhich the actual contributions difler from the required acluarial contibutions are nol known'

ROMAN ToRo & Co., CSP Ceftifred Publi. Accountants a d Business Consuhants

PO BOX 3043 vAUCo PR 0069&3M3 ' IEL (787) 8s6'6220 FAx: (787) 856'6233



COMMONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

NOTE 18- EMPLOYEE'S BETIREMENT PLAN (CONTINUED)

The membeGhip ol retirees and beneliciaries cu(ently receiving benefils and leminaled employees entitled lo benelits, but not

yel receiving benelils, and aclive employees and the disl bution of aclive employees between vested and non'vesled is nol

readily available.

ln the evenl o, the death ol any padicipant who had conlibulions accrued in the new hybrid system, contibulions would be

reimbursed to heirs or other designaled percons as detemined by lhe participanl, equal to the original conlributions plus

undistribuled income up to the date ol lhe participant's death. ln lhe case ol tolal and permanenl disability or due to lerminal

illness, the participant willbe entitled lo his or hers conkibulions in a lump sum oran annuity atihe option ol the parlicipant. The

Puerto Rico Employee Retirement syslem also eslablished a disability benefils program, which may provide lemporary

annuilies by means ol disability insurance in lhe evenl oi total and pemanent disabilities, and is lunded by a maximum 010.25%

ot parlicipanl's salary.

Additional benelits are annually awarded lor participanls ol the delined contibulion and hybrid letilemenl syslems, bul not the

Relirement 2000 Syslem, now replaced by ihe hybrid syslem. These benelits include a medicine bonus of $100 provided by

July 15th, a Christmas bonus ol $200 provided by December 2olh, and cont{ibulion ol $100 by lhe systems lo employees'

medicat insurance plans. These additional benelits a.e lunded by a special contdbulion by lhe ll,4unicipality 1o the systems

beginning lrom ,iscal year 2013'2014 onwards in the order ol $2,ooo lol every pensioner in the Systems who began to wo

before December 31 , 1 999.

The total pension expendilures recorded in lhe category of adminisllalion for lhe Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 was

approximaiely $386,186. Altemployees who at the time ol employment are 55 yearc old or less are eligible lo participale in the

System. No benefit is payable illhe padicipant receives a refund ol his accumulaled contdbulions

The histo cal trend inlormation regarding lhe accumulation of assets and pension benelit obligation in lhe ERS is not available.

For the ten.year trend information, reler to the separately issued iinancial stalements of lhe ERS as ol and lor lhe liscal year

ended Junei0, 20'13. The P.R. Reiiremenl Plan AdminislEtion provides additional inlomalion of the EBS. They issue a public

available linaflcial reporl that includes financial statements and required supplementary information loI ERS, as a componenl

unil ol the Commonwealth ol Puerto Rico. Thal reporl may be oblained by witing to the Adminislration al PO Box 42003,

Itlinillas Stalion, San Juan, P.B.00940.

NOTE 19- CONTINGENCIES

A. CLAIMS AND JUDGIiIENTS

The l\4unicipality is, at presenl, a delendant in a number oi legal matlers that arise lrom alleged improper applicationol policies

and neglig;nciin the ordinary course of the Municipality's activities. With respeci 10 pending litigalion, the Municipality has not

reporled liabililies in the govemmenl wide statemenl ol net position

It is managemeni's opinion, based on the advice of lhe legal counsel, that the potenlial claims against the lllunicipalily not

covered by insulance willmale ally atlecl the linancial resources lor its paymenl.

ln addition, the l\,lunicipality is a defendanl orco-defendanl in several legal proceedings, which are in discovery slage. Certain ol

ihese claims are coveted by insurance. Legal counsels wilh the information culrenlly availade cannot delemine the linal

oulcome ol lhese proceeding. However, it has been the Municipality's e&erience that such actions are settled lol amounls

subslanlially less than the claim amounls.
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COMTIONWEALTH OF PUERTO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINAiICIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 1+ COtlTlNGEtlclEs (ooNTINUED)

B. FEDERAL GRAI'ITS

ln the nomal cou6e ol operations, the Municipality receives grants lrom vaious Federal and state agencies. The granl

orooiams are sutiecr to audit by agenls ol the granti;g authoiiy, the purpose ol which is to ensure compliance wilh conditions

ffi;ili;li;-g:;;fig oitunis.iny tiatitiry t6r reim-bursement which may arise as lhe result ol these audits is noi believed to

be maledal.

NOTE 20- FUND BALANCE

As of June 30, 2013, the fund balance is comprised ol the lollowing:

Fund Balance

General
Fund

Debt
Service

Fund

0lher
Govemmental

Fund
Loans
Fund Total

Restricted for:
Public Works

Recreation

Heallh and Wellare

CapitalOutlays
Debt SeNice

Assigned lor:
GeneralGovernment
Public Salety

Public Works

Culture

Becrcation
Health and Wellare

Unassigned

Total Fund Balance

,'

2,719,049

$:

3,157,286

$ 706,419
1,243,161

104,685

494,553

118,174

$ 706,419
1,243,161

104,685

3,651,839

2,719,049

205,711
6,795

133,877

10,396

3,071

118,174

3,596.713

$12J99190

205,711
6,795

133,877
10,396

3,071

3.596.713

q3356lol $ 2Jt19.049 $3J57?!6 L2.660192
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEETO RICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEIi'IENTS (CoNIINUED)

NOTE 21 - ACCOUNTING CHANGES AND RESTATEMENTS

A. GOVEBNMENTAL FUND FlI'IANCIAL STATEi'IENTS

Thetollowinqrestalemenlshavebeenmadeinthegovemmenlallundfinancialslatemenls,whicharerepodedasan
adiuslmenl lo lhe beginning lund balances:

Fund balance, beginning

To eliminale interfund balances

that are no longer valid

Fund balanc€, beginning as

reslated

246.s91 (246,391)

$,2"!t2t15 $-5J46101

B. GOVERNMENTAL WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The lollowing reslalements have been made in the governmenlal

adjustment to the beginning net posilion:

Total

wide linancial stalements, which are reported as an

Net position, beginning

To adjusl the claims andjudgments

To recognize slate donation land

To recognize slate donation conslruction in

pr0gress

Net position, beginning as reslaled

$ 45,189,327

s50,000

334,000

3.246.215

$19319.!t2

ROMAN TORO & CO.,

PO BOX 3O4J YAUCO PR
CsP Cenified P blic Accounta ts and Busi ess ConsuLonts
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COMIi,TONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

NOTE 22 -NEW ACCOUNTING STANDABDS

The provisions of the following Govemmenlal Accounling standards Board (GASB) Statement have been implemenled for the

year ended June 30, 2013:

GASBSlatementNo'62codilicationot'AtxounlingandFinancialBepotingGuidanceinPrc.|'lovenber30,1989
iASB and AIC1A prcnouncements. Ihe o1ective , this Stalement is lo incoporale inlo the GASB'S authodtative

iiterature cenain accounting and linancial reporting guidance thal is included in the following pronouncements issued

on or before November 30, 1989, which does noi conilicl with or contradict GASB pronouncements:

1. Financial Accounting Standalds Board (FASB) Slatemenls and lnleprelations

2. Accounting Principles Board Opinions

i. Accountn! Hesearch Bulletins olthe Amedcan lnstitute ol cerlilied Public Accountants' (AlcPA) committee

on Accounling Procedures

GASBstatementNo'63,FinanciatBepotingolDelerrcdoutltowsofResources,DelefiedlnllowsolResofices,andNet
iorif,on fnit Statemeni provides linancial reporting guidance lor deferred outflows ol resources and deferled inllows of

resources.

GASB Statement No. 65, ltems Previousty Repotled as Assets and Liabilities. This stalement established accounting and

tinanciai reoortinq that reclassilv, as delerred out1ows of resources or delerled inilows of resources, cedain items lhal were

,i"ri"rs, I*.,rio ri "ii.ii ",ia 
ii"oititi". .no ru.ognizes. as outflows o, resources or inltows ol resources. certain 1ems thal

i"" pi.ii"rlrv r, ,"r"rres and expenses. The adoition ollhis statemenl require that debt issuance cost be recognized as an

expenses in the period inculled.

GASBSlatemenlNo'66'Technicalcorrection-zol2.ananendmenlolGASBstatemenls^Jo'l0andNo.62Theobjeclive
J tttl itater"nt is ro improve accounting and linancial reporting lor a govemmental financial reporting entity by resolving

;onflictino ouidance thal resulted lrom lhe i$suance of two pronouncements, Stalemenl No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and

ililffiH;; iil-d.iinitioni, r.ro. oz coairicalion oiAccounting and Financiat Feporting Guidance conlained in Pre'

November 30, 199 FASB and AICPA Pronouncemenls

I.IOTE 23 -SUBSEOUENT EVENTS

On Augusl 15, 2013, lhe Municipality's Executive Branch approved Ordinance Numbel 16' authorizing to issue a general

obligation bond in the amount of $1,730,000

Municipality has evalualed evenls lhrough December 20, 2013, the date which ihe linancial slatements wele available to be

i.lr"ii-iL.pr f"i.o.equent events'mentioned above, no additional events were identilied lhal should be disclosed or

adiusted in the Financial Statemenls or its Notes.
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COMMONWEALTH OF PUEBTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

BUDGETABY COMPARISON SCHEDULE. GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30' 2013

Actual Amounts
(Budgetary Easis)

variance with
FinalBodget

PosiliveBudoeted Amounts
Final

BEVENUES:
Propefty laxes
I\,lunicipal license taxes

Charges tor sevices
Slate contlibulions
Licenses and Pemils
lnterest, lines and Penalties

olher levenu-"s

Priol year allocalion

Total aevenues

EXPENDITURES, ENCUIiIBBANCES AND

oTHER FINANCII{G USESr

Currcnt
Genetal govemmenl

Public safeiy
Publicworks
Cullure
Recreation
Heallh and wellare

Translers to olher Iunds

Tolal expendhurE, encumbrances and oiher

fin6ncing uses

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF BEVENUES OVER

IUNDEB) EXPENDITUBES, ENCUMBRANCES

iuo orren rturctlo souFcES (usEs)

ROMAN TORO & CO-,

PO BOX 3U3 YAUCO PR

14.275.193

$ 3,904,948
1,800,000

722,000

6,724,830
590,415
245,000
288,000

$ 3,904,948
1,800,000

722,000

6,724,830
590,415
245,000

288,000
192.250

14 4$7 .443

$ 4,239,23S
1,716,96S

901,911

6,889,924
546,893
420,873

196,144

14.911.952

8.813,012
837,050

2,366,263
189,678
359,858
708.133
314.563

13.588,557

$ 334,290
(83,031)

179,911

165,0S4

il43,522)
175,873
(91,856)

444.509

9,590,672
1,038,347

2,109,192
290,660

353,758
750,844
141.720

14.275.193

9,172,459
1,066,876
2,572,377

191,4i11

379,486
150,8M
333.970

14.46?.W

359,447
229,826
206,114

1,753
19,628

42,711
19.407

878.886

CsP C?rtificd Puhlic Ac.ountants and Bustn?\s Co'lsuhon$

unct-ltjll . TEL. t7s7) 856-0220 FM:1787t856'6213

t1123,395
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COi'MONWEALTH OF PUERTO BICO

MUNICIPALITY OF SAN SEBASTIAN

NOTES TO BUDGETARY COi'PARISON SCHEDULE- GENERAL FUND

FOR THE FISCAL YEAB ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE A- EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN BUDGETABY INFLOWS AND OUTFLOWS AND GAAP

REVENUES AtID EXPENSES

Explanation of Dilterences:

Sources/infl ows of resources:

Actualamounls (budgetary basis)'available lor appropriation' lrom the budgetary comparison schedule

Diflerences-budgel to GMP
Toialtevenues and otherfinancing soulces as Ieported onlhe stalemenl oflevenues, expendilures' and

changes in lund balances

Uaes/outllows ol resourcesi
Aclual amounts (budqelary basis)tolal charges to appropriations'llom the budgetary compa son schedule

Difl ercnces-budgel 1o GAAP:

Actrud adjustmenls lo expenditurcs

Prior year expenditure ale not outflows ol budgetary resources, but are elpenditure lol Jinancial puFoses

Encumbances for supplies and equipmenl ordered, but nol received, are reporled in the yed lhe order is

placed Joi budgetary rcporting purposes

TEnsler to olher iunds are oudlows ol budgetary resources but ale nol expenditure lol linancial reporllng

puQoses

To'tal expendilures and ohelfinancing uses as repoded onlhe slalement oJ revenues, expenditurcs, and

changes in fund balances

NOTE B - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUT.ITABILITY

BUDGETARY CONTROL

The l\rlunicipality's annual budget is prepared on the budgelary basis ol accounting, which is nol in accordance $/ith GAAP,

and represents'departmental ippropriations recommended by the Mayor and apploved by.the Municipal Legislaiule pior to

ihe bebinning ol the liscalyeai. Amendments to the budget require the approval ol he l\,'lunicipal Legislalurc. Tlanslerc ol

approp;iaion; within ihe budget, known as Mayols Besolutions, do not require the applovalollhe l,lunicipal Legislature.

The l!,rtunicipality prepares its annual budgel including the operations olthe general lund.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrance accounling is used. The encumbrances (i.e., purchase orde6, contracts) ale

consider;d eip;nditures when incuned. For GMP reporting purposes, encumbrances oulslanding at year'end are reported

as reseNation; o, fund balances and do nol conslitule expenditures or liabilities because the commilmenls will be honoled

during the subsequent year.

The unencumbered balance ol any appropriation at the end of the fiscal year will lapse al the end of such liscal year. Oher

appropdations, mainly capital projeci appropriations, are continuing accounls for which the Municipal Legislalure has

a;iho;ized that an unspentbalance lrom lhe p oryearbecar ed loruad and made avai6b6 forcurent spending.

The annual budgel as presented in the Budgelary Comparison Schedule-General Fund is the budget ordinance al June 30,

2013 represenling the originalbudgel. There were no supplemental approprialions lor lhe ye ended June 30,2013.

$ 14,911,952

$ l!.911,95it

$ 13,588,557

9,609
112,902

(210,336)

(314.563)
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